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DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

: CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045
DUR/2023-24 28" September,2023

Ta,

The Secretary,

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd,
7, Lyons Range,
Kolkata- 700 001

Scrip Code ; 029220
Subject : Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure Reguirement) Rggulétian,zms

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,2015,
Ve are enclosing herewith followings documents for the year ended 31* March 2023 duly approved by
shareholders in Annual General Meeting held on 27" September, 2023.

1. Notige.

2. Directors Report.

3. Balance sheet along with Auditors Report.
Please acknowledge.

Thanking You,

Yours [Faithfully

‘For Durrung Tea Estate Limited.
Director
Avantika Jalan

Encl: As above



Registered Office;

Head Office:

Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C

Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar

P0.: Bindukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 Dibrugarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 / 12 Assam

Assam Email: admin@jalanindustries.com Phone: (0373) 2302895

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com

finance jalanindustries@gmail.com

Email; headoffice@jalanindustries.com

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045

DUR/2023-24 12"September,2023

To,

The Secretary .

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd
7 Lyons Range

Kolkata-700001,

Ref: Script Code 029220
Subject--- Copy of Notice of Annual General Meeting & Other Documents
Dear Sir,

We are enclosing herewith the followings documents for Annual General Mesting to be held on
27" September,2023.

Notice dated 14™ August,23.
Calendar of Events.
Attendance Slip.

MGT 12--- Polling Paper.
MGT 11 - Proxy Form

N

Please acknowledge the receipt .
Regards
Thanking You,

For Durrung Tea Estate Limited

; G "
ped T —
Avantika Jalan
Direetor

Encl As Above
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' DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
CIN: LO1132WB1981PLC197045

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Members of Durrung Tea
Estate Limited will be held physically at the Registered Office of the Company at
Paramount Apartment Flat No. 2C,2™ Fioor, 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Kolkata-
700019 on Wednesday 27" September,2023 at 4.30 P.M. to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31st March'2023 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
therean.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mrs Avantika Jalan (DIN 003333925), whao retire by rotation
and being eligible offer herself for re- appointment,

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Re-Appointment of Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee as' an Independent Director of the
Company for a second term w.e.f. 15 April,2023.

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Special Resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and
any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for. the time being in force)and based on the
recommendation of the Nominee and Remuneration Committee approval of the Boardof Directors
on the Company Mr.Dwija Das Chatterjee(DIN:02183974). holding office as Independent
Dirgetor and being eligible to be re-sppointed for second terms under the provisions of the
Companies Aet,2013 and Rules made thereunder be an is hereby re-appointed as a non-executive
Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation with effect from 1 April, 2023
for second term of five consecutive years.. z
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do and
perform all such acts, deeds, matters or things as may be considered necessary,
appropriate, expedient or desirable to give effect to above resolution.”

By order of the Board

O ector
* . IN 03333825

Place: Kolkata

Date The14™ August 2023

NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote, instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company. In order
to be effective, the instrument appointing proxy must reach the Registered Office
of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the
meeting. A person can act as proxy on behaif of members not exceeding fifty (50)
and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the Paid up Capital of
the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of

" the Paid up Capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or.
shareholder.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to notify to the Ragistrar of the
Company, M/s. ABS CONSULTANT PVT LTD, Stephen House, 6" Floor, Room No. 99,
4, B.B.D. Bag (East). Kolkata — 700 001. any change in their address and Bank details
quoting their Folic numbers and update their email id and Members holding shares in
electronic mode are requested to inform the same also to their respective depository
participants for incorporating updated information.

2. The Register of Members and Equity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed from
21* September’'2023 to 27" September'2023 (both days inclusive).

3. In terms of circular issued by the SEBI, it is now mandatory to furnish a copy of
. PAN card to the Company/RTA in case of transfer, transposition and transmission
of shares. So Members are requested to furnish copy of PAN card for all the above
mentioned transactions :

4. Voting through electronic means

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and
Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial standards on
General Meeting ( SS2) issued by the Institute of Companies Sectaries of India, The
Company is pleased to provide facilities to its Members to exercise their right to
votes on the resolutions set forth in the Notice of the AGM using electronic voting
system provided by Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).



(b) The notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e-Voting along with printed Attendance Slip
and Proxy Form is being dispatched to those members, whose namels are on the
Register of Members as well as in the beneficiary list of NSDL and CDSL on
18" August’ 2023 (Being cut off date decide by the Board for sending notice of AGM)
The e-Voting particulars are provided at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

(c) The e-voting period begins on Saturday 23™ September2023 from 9.00 A.M. and
ends on Tuesday 26" September'2023 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders
of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as
on the cut-offlentitlement date 20" September'2023 (Being cut off date for e- voting
decide by the Board) may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. :

(d) Once the vote on a resolution cast by the members, the member shall not be allow to
change subseguently or cast the vote again The voting rights of the Members shall be
in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on
the cut-off date Wednesday of 20" September'2023.

(e) Mr. Pravin Kumar Drolia (Practicing Company Secretary) of 9,Crooked Lane, ar

Floor RoomNo. 19Kolkata-700089, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to

scrutinize the e-veting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The facility of physical voting through Ballot paper shall also be available at the venue

of AGM. Physical Ballot Forms shall be distributed to the members attending the

R meeting and only those Members attending the meeting, who have not cast thair vote

through remote e voting prior to AGM shall be allowed to exercise their voting rights
at the meeting. At the end of discussion on the resolutions set out in the notice on
which voting is to be held, the Chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer,
order voting through ballot paper .

(g) The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM count the:
votes cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the vote cast through remete e-veting in
the presence of at least twa(?) witness not in the employment of the Company. The
Serutinizer shall submit a consolidated Serutinizer's report of the total votes cast in
favour of or against, if any, within 48 hours after the conclusion of the AGM to the
Chairman of the company. The chairman of the meeting or any other director/person
authorized by the Chairman shall declare the result of the voting forthwith latest by
29'" September,2023 at registered office of the Company.

(h) The Results along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the notice board of
the Company immediately after the result is declared by the chairman or any other
director authotlzed by the Chaitmnarn, =id same shall be communicated to GDSL and
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited.

(f

. MEMBERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM, AND PROXIES
THEREOF AND WANT TO ATTEND MEETING PHYSICALLY, ARE REQUESTED TO
BRING THEIR DP ID AND CLIENT ID FOR INDENTIFICATION FOR

THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i) The voting period begins on 23"™ September'2023 and ends on 26" September'2023
During this period shareholders’ of the Company helding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 20" September'2023 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafte




(i)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(iy  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 03.12.2020,
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 listed entities are required to provide
remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail sharehoiders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility
to listed entities in India, This necessitates registration on various ESPs and
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders,

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders,
by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of’
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast
their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-
voting process.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBUHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised lo update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of |Login Method

shareholders
1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their

- existing user id and password. Opfion will be made available to reach e-
Individual Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to
Shareholders Easi / Easiest arehttps//web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/homellogin or visit
hoiding www .cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.
securities in
Dermal imude 2) After successful login the Casi / Casiest user will be able to see the c-Voting

with CDSL option for eligible companies where the evoling is in progress as per the

) information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual mesting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-\oting Service Praviders ie.
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRedistration

4) Alternatively. the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat |




Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the

system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
helding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

1

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL.:
https //eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User 1D and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at hitps://eservices.nsdi.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS
"Portal or click at hilps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureVVeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
ur on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click en
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member' section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verffication Cade as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities  in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
on e-Voting option. you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vole during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User |D/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type [ Helpdesk details =

"raividual Shareholders hoiding | Members facing any technical issue in login |
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a

request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43.

V)

Individual Shareholders holding Viembers facing any technical issue in login
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a

I

1)
2)
3)

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

| -
Login methed for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
individual shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www. evotingindia.com.
Click on "Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 18 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digits Cliert ID,
c. Shareholders hulding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.
Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders houlding shares in Demat Form other thar
individual and Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax
1 . ;
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
seguence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) ST T




Bank as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to '
Details login.

.OR Date s If both the details are not recorded with the depository or
| of Birth company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
| (DOB) Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(vi)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platiorm. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(i)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions centained in this Notice.

(ix)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

() On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same
the option “YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution,

(xi)+ Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(xii)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on *SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “UK”, else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiil)  Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to maodify your
vote.

(xiv)  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print" option on
the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the imege verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

(xvi), Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians -Remote Voting
« Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
“Corporates” module.
« A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should

be emailed to helpdesk. evoling@cdslindia.com. TR




« After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the accouni(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

¢ The |list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.

» A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

o Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote. to the Serutinizer and to the Company
at the email address viz; finance jalanindustries @gmail.com,if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

« PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DF)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile na. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining
virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738
and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed fo
Mr, Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathan Futurex, Matatlal Mill Compounas, N IV Joshl Mary, Luwer Pdiel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com or call on 022-

23058542/43.
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Members are hereby informed that there is no outstanding amount of unpaid/unclaimed
Dividend and Share to be transfer to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) constituted by
the Central Government under Section 124 & 125 of the Companies Act 2013,

I i bl A
hv’ .j""—-- - ‘.;.- 'ul
Avantika Jalan

Director N et
DIN :03333925 02

Place: Kolkata
Date ; The 14™ August, 2023,

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT
2013

ITEM NO. 3

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 13" February '2023 re-appointed Mr Dwija Das
Chatterjee as an Independent Director under 149, 150, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. From
1% April 2023 to 31% March 2028.

The Board considers that the re- appointment of Mrs. Mr Dwija Das Chatterjes as an
Independent Director of the Company would be of immense benefit to the Company.
Accordingly, the Board recommends the passing of resolution for his re- appointment Except Mr
Dwija Das Chatterjee being an appointee, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, In the resolution. -



Registered Office:

Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C Head Office:
Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar
PO: Bindukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 ' Dibrugarh 786 005
inmtpur Phone: (033) 24757811 /12 Assam .
ssam Email: admin@jalanindustries.com  Phone: (0373) 23026895

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com finance.jalanindustries@gmailcom  Email: headoffice@jalanindustries.com

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045
Calendar of Events of AGM to be held on 27.09.2023

sl Events Date Remarks
No.
1 Date of Annual General Meeting (AGM) 27.09.2023

2 Date of completion of dispatch of notice along with | 01,09.2023
Proxy form to the Shareholders and Stock Exchange

3 Cut off date for sending Notice 18.08.2023
Cut off date for e Voting (Data File) 20.09.2023

4 E Voting Start Date at 9.00AM 23.09.2023

T 5 | EVoting End Date at 5.00PM 26.09.2023
b Date of Book Closure 21.09.2023
27.09.2023

% | Gerutinizer within a period of 48 hours from the date 29.09.2023
| of conclusion of AGM make Scrutinizer report and
submit to the Chairman
[ 8 Date of Declaration of results along with Scrutinizer | 29.09.2023

Report
9 | Submit Outcome of the AGM to Stock Exchange 29.09.2023
| 10 | File u/s 35A of Listing Agreement to Stock Exchange | 29.09.2023
williin 48 TTours of ACM
11| Place on the Website of the Company and on the 29.09.2023

website of Agency immediately after the result is
declared by the Chairmarn.

12 | Payment of Dividend (NECS/ECS/DW) NA.
13 | Name of the Scrutinizer with the ID (as registered | Pravin Kumar
with CDSL) Drolia
| E Enﬁfy
-. | ID:31344

Thanking You,
Yours faithfully.

For Durrung Tea Estate Limited.

Director
DIN : 03333925



FORM NO. MGT - 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 18 (3){ c) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Regd. Off.: PARAMOUNT APARTMENT FLAT NO 2C 2ND FLOOR

25 BALLYGUNGE CIRCULAR ROAD KOLKATA-700019
CIN: L01132WE1981PLC197045

Name of the Member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id: 3
Folio No / Client |d:
lorip:

]I,-’We, being the members (5] of ... Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
1. Name:

Address:

E-mail 1d:

Signature or failing him

2. Name:
Address;
E-mail id:
Signature , or failing him

3. HName:
Address:
E-miail id:
Slgnatire e shlaiinaannasliisuEsss ”

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me us and on my/ our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on|
the 27th day of September 2023 at 4.30 p.m. at PARAMOUNT APARTMENT Hat No.2U 2nd Hoor 25 Ballygunge Uircular Road Kolkata-700019
and at any adjornment thereof inrespect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
Resalutions For Against
1, Heceive, Lonsider and adopt Audited Account and Heport of Board of Uiréctors and Auditors.
2 |Re-appointment of Mr Avantika Jalan as Director
3 |Re-appointment of Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee as Independent Director

Signed this ....
Atfix
Ravenug
Stamp.
|Signature of the shareholder)
Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Signature of first proxy holder Signature of sccond proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less|
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.




FORM NO. MGT - 12
Polling Paper

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1){ ¢} uf the Co and A n} Rules, 2014]

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Regd. Off.: PARAMOUNT APARTMENT FLAT NO 2C ZND FLOQR
25 BALLYGUNGE CIRCULAR ROAD KDLKATA-700019
CIN: LO1132WE1981PLC197045
BALLOT PAPER

5. No.|Particulars Details

1. |Name of the First Named
Sharehoiders (In black latters]

2. |Postal address

3, (Registered folio No/*Client 10 Ne:
{rapplicable to nvestars holding.

shares in dematerialized form)

4. |Class of Share

I haraby exercise my vote inrespect at Ordinary / Special resalution enumeratad below by recording my assent or dissent 1o the sald resolution In the foliowing manner:

Na. of shares. | | assent to the | | dissent form
No. | | n heid by me 25 oluth the resolution
1, Racaive Consider and adopt Audited Account and Report of Board of Directors and Auditars.
2. |Re-appomtment of Mr Avantika Jalan as Diectar
Re<agpointmr of Mr Bwija D=5 O jee a5 hdey lent Director
Place: Kolkata
Date; [Signature of the shareholder)
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' DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Ragd. Off . PARAMOUNT APARTMENT Flat NoZc 2" Floor
25 Ballygunge Circular koad Kolkata — 700018, (West Bengal)
) Phone: (91-033) 24757811
E-mail-finance jalanindustries@gmail. com, CIN: LO11 32ZWB1981PLC197045

ODATTENDANCE SLIP

4

Regd. Follo / DP ID & Client ID

| Name and Address of the Shareholder |

| being a Member / Proxy for the member(s) of the Company, hereby record myfour presence at the ANNUL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company being held on Wadnesday the 27th day of September, 2023 at 4,30 pm_ at Paramount Apartment 2™ Elaor Flat No-2C. 25 Ballygunge
Circutat Road,Kolkata- 700012

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy Present

Sharehoider ( Proxy holder wishing 10 attend the mesting must bring the Attandance Siip to the meeting and handover the same at the entrance
duly sianed.

Sharehiolder | Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting may bring his | har copy of the Annual Report for reference at the meeting.

Nate: P EASE GUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTENDANCE SLIP TO THE MEETING.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

(TJEVSN, {2) {3} (4
{E-Vioting Seq No.) USER ID. PAN or Relevant No.as under Bank Account No.

{See Note Nao.1)

Notes .
(1) Where Bank Account Number is not registered with the Depositories or Company please enter your User |d. as méntianed in culunin (2) above

(2) Please read the Instructions printed In the Notice dated 147 AugUst 20235 af tne Annual General Mestng The o Woting pariod etame from 9w on
54. 09-2023 and ends at 5,00 p.m. on 26-09-2023. The e-veting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafier.



Registered Office:

Tea Estate: Paramount Apartment, Flat 2C Head Office:

Durrung Tea Estate 25 Ballygunge Circular Road Jalannagar

PO, Bindukuri 784 502 Kolkata 700 019 Dibragarh 786 005
Sonitpur Phone: (033) 24757811 / 12 Assam

Assam FEmail: admin@jalanindustries.com  Phone: (0373) 2302895

Email: durrungteaestate@gmail.com finance.jalanindustries@gmail.com Email: headoffice@jalanindustries.com

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Directers of your Company have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report on the affairs of the
Company together with the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 * March, 2023

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Financial Results for the year are as under:-
(In Lakhs)

[ PARTICULAR | 2022-23 2021-22 |
Revenue from operations (Net) 1659.57 1308.98
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) 193.09 (-)131.85
Less: Interest & Financial expenses - 45.44 41.00
Profit /(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax (PBDT) 147.65 (-)172.85
Less; Depreciation 55.48 5372
Profit/(Loss)/before tax : S (-)226.57
Less: Tax Expense ' . '

Deferred Tax (-)10.04 19.18
Profit/(Loss) for the period after tax (PAT : 102.21 {-) 245.75
DIVIDEND

To conserve the resources, your Directors do not prepose any Dividend
PERFORMANGE '

Producticn of tea for the year was 724715kgs (from bofh own and bought leaf) as against
previous year's production of 685642kgs (from both own and bought leaf) showing &n
increase during the year due to supply of cutsourced leaf .

During the year the prices of teas were steady, So also was the cost of production thus
resulting in favorable result for the Company. ' .

The Company continued its program of factory modernization in order to achieve better
standards of tea produced. The replanting and infilling continues as per program to ensure
better yield.



PROSPECT

Current year crop is higher than previous year, The Directors expect to maintain this trend.
During the current financial year sales realization are at par as compare to last year but
substantial increase in labour wages and other inputs may have adverse effect on the current
years working. However, the directors are optimistic about current year's result

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The same is not applicable to the Company.
GCORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The same is not applicable to the Company
PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not invited or accepted public deposits from public covered u/s 73 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company has appointed full ime Company Secretary under the category of KMP during
the year under review. The Company does not have proper composition of Independent
Directors in spite of best efforts .The Company will rectify the position very soon.

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION
149(6):

The independent Director have submitted the declaration of independence, as reqguired
pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Sub Section (6).

The Independent Director has confirmed and declared that he is not dis-qualified to act as an
Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section149 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Independent Director fuffill all the conditions
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making him eligible to act as independent Director

- MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate section
forming part of the Annual Report.



'DISCLOSURE RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES & POLICIES

a) Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met 7 (Seven) ttimes during the financial year ended 31% March,
2023.

The details of Board Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting are enclosed herewith as per
Annexure C.

b) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Your Directors state that :

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31% March,2023, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Ill to
the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31%' March,2023 and of the
profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

f) all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

¢) Audit Committee

The Composition of Audit Committee was as per applicable provision of Companies Act’2013
and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015.for the financial year ended 31% March'2023. All
the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board, The Audit
Committee has met on 4(Four) times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

The details of Audit Committee Meeting are enclosed herewith as per Annexure C.

d) Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Gommittee was as per applicable
provision of Companies Act'2013 and as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 for the financial
year ended 31% March’2023.

The Policy of the Company for Directars selection, appointment & remuneration, including the
criteria for determining gualifications, positive atiributes independence of Director and other
matters provided under section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is properly recorded and
disclosed.



~ e) Vigil Mechanism for the Directors & Employees

in compliance with the provision of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
22 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 the Company has framed "Whistle Blower Policy” as
vigil Mechanism for Directors & employees of the Company.

f) Internal Control System

The internal financial control with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or
serious observation has been received from the statutory auditors and internal auditors of the
Company far inefficiency or inadeguacy of such controls.

g) Risk Management

The Company has laid down well defined risk management mechanism covering the risk
Exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. The Board periodically reviews the
risks and suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly
defined frame work.

In line with the new regulatory requirements, the Company has formally framed a Risk
Management Policy to identify and assess the key risk areas, monitor and report compliance
and effectiveness of the policy and procedure.

h) Annual Evaluation of the Directors and Board

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board has formulated a Performance
Evaluation framework under which the Committee has identified criteria upon which every
Director shall be evaluated. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into
Consideration of various aspects of the Board functions, compaositions of the Board, culture,
execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. A separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of the individual directors including the
Chairman of the Board, on parametsrs such as level of engagement and contribution,
independence of judgment, safeguard the interest of the Company. The performance
evaluation of the Non Independent Directors and the Board as a whole including Committee
thereof was carried out by the Independent Director for the financial year 2022 23.

The Board expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

i) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted Auditors' Report on the Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2023. The Statutory
Auditers have drawn your sattention towards certain notes attached to the Financial

Statements. The same are, however self-explanatory and requires no comments,

The Auditor report does not contain any qualification, reservation and adverse remarks.



" SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Shri Pravin Kumar Drolia, Practicing

Company Secretary, as "Secretarial Auditor” of the Campany to conduct Secretarial Audit for
the financial year ended March 31, 2023, pursuant to the provisions of Secfion 204 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.
A Secretarial Audit Report submitted by Mr Pravin Kumar Drolia (Company Secretaries) is

annexed here with as "Annexure A". The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN U/S 92(3)

As provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 extract of the Annual Return
prepared in form MGT-8 pursuant to Rule 12(1) the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in “Annexure B” which forms a part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTY

All the related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Act. There are no material significant related party
transactions made by the Company with promoters, directors or key managerial personnel
etc. which might have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

The details of the transactions with the related parties are provided in the Company's financial
Statement.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements wilh relaled parlies referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 is enclosed in “Annexure D” as per Form AOC-2.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements,

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

No significant and material orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal
which can have an impact on the going concern status and the Company's operations in
future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

The prescribed particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption and R & D
activities required U/s 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
is attached as " Annexure E" and forms part of this Director's Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Except as disclosed slsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which

could affect the Company's financial pesition have occurred between the end of the financial
year of the Company and the date of this report.



* ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Banks & Financial Institutions, Central and
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On behalf of the Board

ai—
40
Place; Kolkata ' \jﬂmx Wﬂ""" S

Date: 30" May,2023. Director  Director



CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA ANNEXURE--A

(Company Secretary in whole time practice)

13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata — 700031

Mobile:09831196869. email: droliapravinl 2@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st Day of March, 2023
[Pursuant to Section204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and RuleNo.9 of the Companies
{(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014]

To,

The Members,

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED,
(Formerly S P B P Tea (India) Ltd)
(CIN: L01132WB1981PLC197045)
Flat 2C, Paramount Apartment,

25, Ballygunj Circular Road,

Kolkata — 700 019

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Durrung Tea Estate Limited (CIN:
L01132WB1981PLC197045) (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reascnable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended 3'1st March, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed hersunder and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter except that Company do not have proper strength of Independent Directors on the
Board. Management of the Company explained that they are keen to appoint more
independent directors on the board but due to COVID pandemic since March 2020, they are
still unable to get suitable candidate during the year under review and as soon as they will get
, they will appoint it.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 according to the
provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

I The Securities Gontracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thergunder;

[1l.The SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations 20186,
1 I Pa BE



IV Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1998 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowing, (Not applicable during the period under audit)

V. The following Regulations (as amended from time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act'):-

(a)The Securites and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; ( this clause is not applicable as CSE is non functional exchange and there is no trading
in equity shares of the Company on tha Exchange since last more than eight years.)

(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993)

(d) The SEBI Listing (Listing obligation and disclosure requirements <LODR>) Regulations
2015

[The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1892 ('SEBI Act’) are not applicable to the Company for the above financial
year: -

| The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee benefits and sweat
equity) Regulations  2021;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Boeard of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
as amended from time to time; and the Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 2018;]

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

VI

The following Industry Specific laws:

a. TeaAct, 1953

b, The Tea \Waste (Control} Order, 1952

c. The Tea Warehouse (Licensing) Order 1989
d. The Tea (Marketing) ControlOrder, 1984

I have also examined the following compliance with the applicable clauses of Companies Act
2013 and SEB! (LODR) Regulations 2015 :

i. The LODR and listing agreement entered into by the Company with The Caleutta Stock
Exchange Limited. As the CSE is non-functional exchange. the Company has
complied with the requircments of the Listing Agreement. LODR and various

2[Page



Rules and Regulations made under SEBI Act, 1992 and SCRA, 1956 which the
management deems necessary and reasonable. During the year under review, the
Company also received notice of adjudication of Penalty under section 434 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3(2) of Company (Adjudication of
Penalties) Rules 2014 for contravention of provision of Section 203(1) of the
Companies Act 2013, the Company has appointed during the year under review
all the Key Managerial Personnel as required under section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

ii.Regulation 15 of LODR relating to Corporate Gavernanee is not applicable to
the Company during the year under review,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above during the year under
review per applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 .

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and a Woman Director other than adequate numbers of
Independent Directors, There is no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during
the period under audit. Further Company is not regular in depositing provident fund with
appropriate authorities within stipulated time period. No separate meeting of Independent
Directors was held during the year under review. Further Company, Directors and KMP
received show cause notices from Registrar of Companies (West Bengal) for nen-appainting
Company Secretary ( under KMP category) under Section 203 of the Acl since last four years
and appropriate penalty as per Act were imposed separately on Company, Director and KMP.
As informed by the management, all aggrieved parties filed an appeal with Regional Director
(Eastern Zone) under mca against the above order of ROC,

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings. Agenda and delailed
notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance manually, and proper system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items besfore the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

I further report that there are adequate system and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as represented by the management. All decisions of the
Board were unanimous and the same was captured and recoded as part of the Minutes.
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| further report that during the audit period, the Company has not made any:

(i) Public/Right/ Preferential issue of Shares/Debentures/Sweat Equity or any other Security.

(il Redemption / buy-back of securities.

(i) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(iv) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction etc

(v) Foreign Technical Collaborations.

For Prvain Kumr Drolia
(Company Secretary in whole time practice)

SD/=

Pravin kumar Drolia
Proprietor
FC5: 2366, CP 1362
Place: Kolkata Peer view registration: 1928/2022
Date: 30-05-2023 UDIN:FO0236G6E000383131
Note:
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
an integral part of this report.
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To

CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA

(Company Secretary in whole time practice)
13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata - 700031

Mobile:0983 1196869, email: droliapravin 1 2@gmail.com

ANNEXTURE “A"

The Members,

DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED,
(Formerly S P B P Tea (India) Ltd)
(CIN: L0O1132WB1981PLC197045)
Flat 2C, Paramount Apartment,

25, Ballygunj Circular Road,

Kolkata — 700 019

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company,
My responsihility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. |
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required. [ have obtained the management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsihbility of management, My examination was limited to verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Prvain Kumr Drolia
(Company Secretary in whole time practice)

SD/=

Pravin Kumar Drolia
Proprietor
FCS: 2366, CP 1362

Place: Kolkata Peer view registration: 1828/2022
Date: 30-05-2023 UDIN:FOOZ366E000383131
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Annexure-B

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on March 31,2023 of Durrung Tea Estate Limited
(Formerly SPBP TEA (INDIA) LIMITED) [Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L

IL

11I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

(i3] CIN:L01132WB1981PLC197045

(i1) Registration Date : 01/07/1981

(i)  Name of the Company : Durrung Tea Estate Limited (Formerly SPBP TEA (INDIA) LIMITED)
(iv)  Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited by Shares

(v) Address of the Registered office and contact details:
Paramount Apartment Flat No, 2C
25, Ballygunge Circular Road Kolkata- 700 019
E-Mail: finance jalanindustries@gmail .com
Website durrung.com

(vi)  Whether listed Company: Yesat The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

ABS Consultant Pvt. Ltd.
Stephen House

4, B.B.D. Bag (East)
Kolkata-700 001
Website Address: NIL
Phone: +91 3322431053

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :

All the business activities contributing 10% or mare of the total turnover of the Company shall be
Stated:-

5L | Name and Description NIC Code of the "% to total turnover of |
No. | of main Product Product the Company
1. | Cultivation, Growing, 01132 | 100.00%
Manufacturing of Black Tea
PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :
SI. | Name &Address of CIN Holding/ | %of | Applicable
No. | The Company Subsidiary/ | Shares | Section
Associate Held |
1 | Jalan Holdings Pyt Ltd Us7iaowniosirTrosisas  Associate 20.55%




Iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup As Percentage of Total Equity)
(1] Category-wise Share Holding
Category No. of shares held at the No. of shares held at the [ oh
of beginning of the year 01.04.22 end of the year 31.03.23 ! Change
Shareholders Nemat | Physical | Total | %of | Demat | Physical Total | Wy of | Uuring
Total Total | the
Share Share{ Y*"
A,
Promoters
(1) Indian ‘
Individual/HUF | 236345 | - 236345 | 2522 236345 |- 236345 |25.22 | -
Central Govt. - - . - - | - - - ‘ -
State Govt. - - - - - - - -
Bodies Crop. 700855 |- 700855 | 74.78| 700855 |- 700855 | 74.78 -
Banks/Fl - " - - -
Any other - . i . =
Sub Total (A)(1) 937200 |- 937200 | 100.00| 937200 1937200 | 100.00] -
(2) Foreign - - = - - - - -
NRIs Individuals - - - = = - v
Other individuals | - - - - - - <
Bodies Corp. 4 : - -
Ranks,/Fl - 4 - - - =
Any other - - . - 4 - | -
Sub Total (A)(2) | - - - = . - =
Total Shareholding | 937200 | - 937200 | 100.00{ 937200 |- 937200 | 10000 .
(A) = (A)(1] +
(A)(2)




B.Public Sharcholding

1. Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds
(b) Public Fin Ins
(¢]Central Govt
(d) State Govt.
(e) Venture Cap
(f) Insurance Co.

(g) Flls

(h) Foreign
Venture Cap.
Fund

(i) Others

Sub Total (B)(1)

2. Non Institutions
(a) Bodies Crop
(i)Indian

[ii)Overseas
(b] Individuals
() Individual
Sharehalder
Holding sh
Cap. Upto
Rs. 1 lakh
(ii)Individual
Shareholder
Holding sh
Cap. in
Excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
(c) Others-NRI

Sub Total (B)(2)
Total Public

Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

G
Shares held by
Custodian for

GDRs &ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

937200

937200

100

937200

!937200
|

100




(ii)  Shareholding of Promaters

Sl. | Shareholder's Name | Shareholding at the Shareholding at the '
No. beginning of the year 01.04.22 end of the year 31.03.23
No.of | %of % of No.of | %of % of
shares | total Shares shares | total shares
shares Pledged/ shares | Pledged/
of the Encum ofthe | Encum
Company | -bered company| -bered
to total to total
| | shares | shares
1 Mrityunjay Jalan 5645 0.60 0.60 0.60
' 2 | Avantika Jalan 5700 0.61 = 5700 0.61 -
3 | Mahadeoc Jalan 58000 6.19 = 58000 6.19 =
4 | Sarala Jalan 67000 | 7.15 - 67000 715 =
5 | KumXum Jalan 100000 | 10.67 - 100000 | 10.67 | -
6 | Jalan Investments Pyt L|163388 | 1743 B 163388 | 1743 |-
7 | Narsingdass Surajmall (169627 | 18.10 4 169627 | 1810 |-
Properties Pvt Ltd
8 | Jalan Industries Pvt Ltd[175290 | 18.70 - 175200 | 1870 |-
9 | Jalan Holdings Pvt Ltd [192550 | 20.55 - 192550 | 2055 |-
Total 937200 | 100.00 |- 937200 | 100.00 | -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

| SL Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding |
No. beginning of the year 01.04.22 during the year |
No. of 9% of total No. of % of total shares
shares | shares of the shares | ofthe Company
Company
At the beginning of the year 937200 100.00 937200 100.00

Fromoters sharcholding during the
Year specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year 937200 100.00 937200 100.00

Date wise increase/decrease in l
|

There is no change in Promoter Shareholding during the year ended 31+ March 2023 in comparison to lust year.

(iv]  Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
And Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Sl. | For Each of the Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year 01.04,22 during the year
No. of 9% of total No. of % of total
shares Shares of shares | Shares of
= the Company | the Company
L NIL N.A. NIL N.A.
| NIL N.A. HIL N.A.
[ NIL N.A. NIL N.A. )|




V.

| NIL

| NA.

| NIL | NA.

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. | For Each of the Directors & KMP | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No, I beginning of the year 01.04.22 | during the year
No. of % of total No. of Y% of total
Shares Shares of shares Shares of the
the Company
2 Company
At the beginning of the year 11345 121 nil nil
Date wise increase/decrease in - -
Promoters shareholding during the
Year specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
Transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year 11345 1.21 il nil
INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment:
Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits Total
Excluding Loans Indebtedness (in Lakhs)
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the
Financial year 01.04.22
(i) Principal Amt. 620.12 814.11 1434.23
(i) Interest due but 0.20 0.20
Not paid
(iii) Interest accrued
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 620.32 814.11 1434.53
Change in
Indebtedness during
The financial year
- Addition [ Net) 0.42 0.42
-  Reduction 56.52 1.58 58.10
Net Change (-] 56.10 (-] 1.58 (-157.68
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
31.03.23
(i) Principal Amt. 563.60 812,53 | 1376.13
(ii) Interest due but 0.62 0.62
Not paid
(iii) Interest accrued
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) S564.22 | 812,53 1376.75




A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SL
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

| Name of MD/WTD/Manager
|

Tutal- ;
Amount

Managing Director

1

(;ross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained
In section 17(1) ef the Income
Tax Act, 1961

{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
The Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3]) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

9.00 Lakhs

9.00 Lakhs

Stock Option

Wi

Sweat Equity

Commission
- As% of Profit
- Others, specify

Others, please specify

Total (A)

9.00 Lakhs

Celling as per the Act

Remuneration to other directors :

SL.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration !

Name of Directors

frotal

Paid during 1.04.22 to 31.03.2023

Amount

1.  Independent Directors
-Fee for attending x
Board committee
Meetings -
-Commission -
-Others 2

Total (1)

2. (Other Non-Executive
Directors -

-Fee for attending
Board committee -
Meetings 3
-Commission =
-Others

Total (B) = (1) + (2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration =




Overall Geiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl, | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
CFO CEO Total
Amount
1 Gross Salary
(d) Salary as per provisions contained
In section 17(1) of the Income 7.20 Lakhs N.A. 720 Lakhs
Tax Act, 1961
(e) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
The Income Tax Act, 1961
(f) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option y N
3 | Sweat Equity e -
4 Commission
- As % of Profit -- - _
Qthers, specify shi - !
5 | Others, please specify -- - - |
| Total 7.20Lakhs N.A. | 7.20 Lakhs
i
W 3
PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Briel Details of Authprity T
the Description Penalties/ [RD/NCLT/ Made, |
Companies Punishment/ Court| Hany
Act Compounding 1
A, Company =0
Penalty NIL
Pumishment
Compounding
B. Directors
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Cormpeunding
€. Other OMcersin default T
Peralty NIL = |
Punishment
Compounding |




ANNEXURE-C

Number of Meetings of the Board and Committees thereof

(a) Details of the Meeting of Board of Directors and meetings attended by the directors held
between April’2022 to March’23 are as under:

Board Meetings were hald during the yaar an 20" May,22, 5™ July,22,12"" Auguet,22
29" October,22, 14" November,22,27" January,23,13" February,23

Name of Member Meetings held Number of Meetings attended
Mrs Avantiak Jalan 7 7
Mr Mrityunjay Jalan 7 7
Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee 7 7
Mr V.S.Nayar 7 7

(b) Details of the Meeting of Audit Committee and meeting attended by the Committee Members
between April'2022 to March’2023 are as under:

During the year the Committee held four mestings : 30th May,22,12" August, 22,147 November, 22,13 February,23

The attendance of the members at these meeting are as under :

Name of Members Position Meetings held Number of Meetings attended
Mr Dwija Das Chatterjee Chairman 4 4
Mr Mrityunjay Jalan Member 4 4
Mr Avantika Jalan Member 4 4




ANNEXURE - D

FORM AOC 2
J SI. | Related Party Relationchip Description of transaction Ralance Forthe |
No. year ended
March 31,2023
(1) In Lakhs
1 Mr.Mrityunjay Jalan Directer Directors Remuneration 9.00
2 M/s Jalan Holdings Pvt. Ltd. Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 147 45
3 | M/s Jalan Industries Pvt, Ltd., Related Party Unsecured T.oan Taken 430.63
4 | M. Mrityunjay Jalan Director Unsecured Loan Taken 4.95
5 | M/s Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Related Party Unsecured Loan Taken 229,50
Put. Ttd.
6 | M/s Dinjoye Tea Estate Pvt. Ltd, Related Party Advance taken/ (given) (57.54)
7 | M/s Jalannagar Development Pvt. Related Party Advance taken/ (given) (18.60)
Ltd,
8 | M/s Jalannagar South Estate Pyt Ltd | Related Party Advance taken/ (given) (68.69)
9 | M/s Jalan Investments Pvt Ltd Related Party Advance taken/ ( given) (167.65)
|




ANNEAUKE-LL
FORM - A

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy:

A. Power and Fuel Consumption:

Particular Current year Previous Year
2022-2023 2021-2022
1. Electricity
a) Purchased (Unit ) 8,49,586 7.56.647
Total Amount (Rs) 80,350,720 68.59.273
Rate/Unit 9.48 9.07

b) Own Generation
i) Through Diesel Generators

Units produced 67794 1. 00,556
Units per Liter of Diesel 6.69 4.99
Cost / Unil 13.28 17.27
2. LPG )
Qty. (kgs) 167,975 1.60.788
Total Cost 1.57,03.124 1,31,98.078
Average Rate 96.95 82.08
Product Made Tea ( Kgs) 724,715 6.85.642
Electricity (in Units)/per kg 1.27 1.25
LPG (in Kg)/per kg 0.23 0.23

FORM - B
Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to Absorption, Research and Development ( R&D)

1. Specified area in which R& D carried out by the Company.

2. Benefits derived as a result of above R& D The company subscribes to
3. Future Plan of action. Tea Research Association
4. ExpenditureonR & D. which is registered under
a) CapitalR&D. Section 35(i)(ii) of the

b) Recurring. Income Tax Act,1961.

c) Total

d) Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total Turnover

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
1. Effort in brief, made towards technology
Absorption, adaptation, and innovation

Continuous efforts are being made towards
absorption, adaptation, and innovation of
Technoelogy absorption maintaining close
Liaison with advisory officer of Tocklai
Experimental Station.
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above Increase in productivity and cost reduction
efforts, eg product improvement ,cost by optimization of inputs.
reduction, import substitution ete.



Foreign Exchange Earning and outgo
1. Foreign Exchanged Earned (FOBY) - Nil
2. Foreign Exchanged used —mmen i

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
o
Place: Kolkata 0 e 4 L‘b::llg! ) PMP‘%'W J///‘
Director

Date; 30t May, 2022 -k Director



V. SINGHI & ASSOCTIATES

Chartered Accountants
Four Mangoe Lane

Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani,
Ground Floor, Kolkata — 700 001
Phone : +91 33 2210 1125/26
E-mail : kolkata@vsinghi.com

Website : www.vsinghi.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Durrung Tea Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Durrung Tea Estate Limited (“the
Company”), which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Pinancial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31st March, 2023, its profit (including Other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion
We would like to draw your attention to the following:

The Corpany has not provided liability on account of terminal benefits (gratuity) in accordance with Ind
AS 19 "Employees Benefit” amounting o Rs, 439,81 Lakhs including Rs. 70.99 Lakhs for the curvent
year, in the financial statements, which constitutes a departure from the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed in section 133 of the Act.

As a consequence, the outstanding amount of the provisions in the Jinancial statements would have
increased by Rs. 439.81 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023, and profit for the year and retained earnings under
other equity would have reduced by Rs. 70.99 Lakhs, and Rs. 439.81 Lakhs respectivelyy.

We conducted our audit of Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements undler the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT's Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit
-evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion on the Financial Statements.

A T
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" Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the balances of Trade Receivables, Other Receivables, Advances, Trade
Payables and Other Current Liabilities being subject to confirmation by the parties and which
include some old items pending reconciliation.

Our opindon is not qualified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

KeyAudﬁmumare&nmematm&uhinmnpmfessimaljudgmentWereofmest
significance in our audit of financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a sepazate opinion on these matters, -

InadditiontoﬁtematberdescribedinﬂleBasisforQualiﬁedOpinionSecﬁomwehave
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

a
.

report:

s1
No.

Key Audit Matters

Response to Key Audit Matters

1

FPlant and

There are areas where management
judgment impacts the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and their respective
depreciation rates, These include the
decision to capitalise or expense casts;
the annual asset life review; the
timeliness of the capitalization of assets
and the wuse of mana

assumptions and estimates for the
determination: or the measurement and
recognition criteria for assets retired
from active use. Due to the materiality
in the context of the Balance Sheet of
the Company and the level of judgment
and estimates required, we consider
this to be an area of significance.

We assessed the controls in place over the
fixed  assst  cycle, evaluated  the
appropriateness of capitalization process,
performed tests of details on costs capitalized,
the timeliness of the capitalization of the assets
and the de-recognition criteria for assets
retired from active use.

In performing these procedures, we reviewed
the judgments made by management
incuding the nature of underlying costs
capitalized; determination of realizable value
of the assets retired from active use; the
appropriateness of asset lives applied in the
calculation of depreciation; the useful lives of
assets prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act and
the useful lives of certain assets as per the
technical assessment. We observed that the
management has regularly reviewed the
aforesaid judgments and there are no material

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company is involved in various
taxes and other disputes for which final
outcomes. cannot Pe easily predicted

OQur audit procedure in response to ﬂ'liskes;, ¥
7

)



and which could potentially result in | Audit Matter included, among others,
significant Habilities. The assessment of
the risks associated with the litigations :

is based on complex assumptions, | ® Assessment of the process and relevant
which require the use of judgment and controls mlplemented to identify legal and
such judgments relate, primarily, to the tax  litigations,; and  pendirg
assessment of the uncertainties administrative proceedings.
cormected to the predicion of the | ® Assessment of assumptions uged in the
outcome of the proceedings and to the Evaluaﬁmof_pomﬁallegnlmdtmcri?ks
adequacy of the disclosures in the performed by the Company considering
financial statements. Because of the the legal precedence and other rulings in
judgments required, the materiality of similar cases,

such litigations and the complexity of | ® Inquiry by management regarding the
the assessment process, the area was a status of the most significant disputes and

key matter for our audit. inspection of the key relevant
documentation,
¢ Analysis of opinion received from the
experts where available,

e Review of the adequacy of the disclosures
in the notes to the financial statements,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis; Board’s Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance and shareholder’s information but does not include the financial
statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
express any form of assurance or conclusion: thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it became available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained during ﬂ'leimume of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I:[,wecmc}ude,basedonﬂ'neworkwehaveperformed.on&mo&lerinfomﬁonobtainedprim
to the date of this Auditor’s Report, that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. However, we have nothing to report in this
regard, ' '

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Fnancial
Statements ' ¢

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
AftwithrespecttomeprepamﬁoncfﬂleseFimmialStatemmtsﬂmtgiveat-ueand'fairview
of the financial position, financial performance, including total comprehensive income,
in equity and cash flowsFof the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other acgountirig.




principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intemnal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy @nd
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
FinmdalStatenmntsthatgiveatrueamifairtdzwandare&eefmmmteﬂalmisstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. . '

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

+ liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemnative but to do so.

Hteerdokaechrshﬂhorwpondbkfmwmeemgﬂowstﬁmndﬂmpmﬁng

. Pprocess.

Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee thatanauditoondnctedinaccordaneeudeAswﬂia}wayadetecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could remsonably be expected to
hﬂumm&mmﬂcdedsimsofmmmkmmﬂmbasisofmmmmmmm.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

. Idmﬁfymdusessﬂmﬁ&ksafma&dﬂmiﬂstatemmtofﬂthamhlStaﬁmmm,
- whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
mtenhonalonmwmisrepreaemamorﬁmovmdeofmbemalmntml

° Obba.inanunderstandingofintanalcmholsrelevamtnﬂwauditinmdertodesign
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing onr opinion on whothor tha ‘Campany
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, .

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accmmﬂng policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

® Ccmcludemmeapp:opmtenessnfmmagmnmfsuseof&uegcingcmmbasisof
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
7 wdslsrdatedmwmtso:condiﬁomﬂ\atmycmtsigrﬁﬁcmdcubtmﬂwCompmy‘s
abiﬁtymomﬁ:measagoingconcmlfweoom}udethatambeﬁal inty exists,
we are required togdraw attention in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosuresi./

the Financial Stafi m,ifmchdjsdosmareinadequate,tnmdiﬁlﬂﬁrﬂﬁm




Gncmﬁuﬁmmbasedm&emditeﬁdemeobtainedupbthedaﬁeofm
Auditor’s Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluake the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
inclading the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements tepresent * the
wnderlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safoguards.

From ‘the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our Auditor's
Report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter oz when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

-Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of séction 143 of the Act, we give
in the ” Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said
Order, to the extent applicable,

2) Asrequired by seclivn 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

" b) incmoplnimmeperboolmofncmuMasrequj:edbthhavebeenkeptbyﬂm
X Companysofarasitappeam&ommwemnﬂnatimofﬂwsebooks;

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
wiﬂmbyt}ﬁsRepnrtareinagreemmtwiththebooksofacmunt;

d) subject to the matter specified in qualified opinion section of our report, in our opinion,

the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

. sPaﬂﬁedundgrSecﬁonmsof&wAchmadwi&lﬂuCompaniea(IndianAmmﬁng
% Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended; '




B

h)

ii)

iv)

v) The company has t‘l;lt declared, paid or proposed any dividend during the year. s

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 312t March,
2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 315t March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act;

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, the Company has complied with the
provision of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, relating to Managerial
Remuneration; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us!

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Financial Statements. Refer Note 31 to the Financial Statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

there were no amounts due which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Partics”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been comsidered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.




vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
mmtusﬁxgamomﬁngsomewtﬂchhmafeamredremrdEgaudﬁuaﬂ(editlog)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditore) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
forﬂleﬁnmcialyagrendedMardISL 2023,

For V. Singhi & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E

(NAVEEN TAPARIA)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Daute: 0% Miay, 2023 Membership No. 038433

1)



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph-1 on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of even
d&tetnﬂwmmnhembeummgTeaEsiate[inﬁtedm&eFﬁwndﬂStatunenﬁfmﬂmyear
ended 31% March, 2023: :

a) i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment,

ii)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible agsets;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant and
Equipmenthavebeenphysicaﬂyveriﬁedbyﬂmmanagementatmgular
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and
the same has been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

) Aceordingwﬂmeinformaﬁonmde)qplamﬁmgivmwusandonﬂwbaﬂisof
our examination of the records of the Company, the Title Deeds of immovable
pmperﬁesasdisdosedm&lefhlmdalstatememareheldinﬂmnameofﬂle

Company.

- d) As explained ta us, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and

Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

e) Accardhgto&mhfommﬁanandexplanaﬂmsgivenhousandonthebaﬁisof
our examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been
iniﬁatedorampmdingagamst&mmmpmyforholdmganybmanﬁpmperty
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

a) According to' the information and explanations given to us, physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate,

As expla.in?_edtous;ﬁm discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical
inventories and book records were not material in relation to the operations of the
Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
Crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions at any point of time
of the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

mrgramedanyloan,secumdorumemd,durmgﬂteyear,toanycompany,
firm, Limited Liability Partnership or-any other party. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(a)
to (f) of the Order are not applicable.
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Accordingmﬂleinfmﬁonmdexplamﬁmgiventuus,&leCompenyhaa
compliedndth&lepmvisionsofSecﬁmmSandlﬂﬁofﬂleActinmspectof
investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amount which are
deemed deposits within the meaning sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and
the Rules made thereunder to the extent applicable. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(v) of the arder is not applicable, 7

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub- section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of activities carried out by the company,

- Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable.

vil.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
a. ijAﬂcordjngtuﬂmirﬂomuﬂmandexplamrﬁonsgimntousandon&w
basis of our examination of the records, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ Stats Insurance, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Goods and
# Services Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities and there are no undisputed amount payable in respect of the
samewhichwereinarreamaaonalstMamh,MSfmapeﬁodofme
than six months from the datemesamebemmepayahle,exeeptﬂ\e
following:
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Name of the [ Nature of | Amount Period to | Due Date Date of
statute the dues which  the Payment
amount
relates
The Assam | Green  Leaf | 7.92 : July 2018 - [15% October, | Not yet
Texation  (on | Cess September | 2018 paid
specified Lands) 2018
Act, 1990 :
The Provident | Provident 123 ° April  2020- |15% of the | Not yet
Fand Act, 1952 | Fund March 2021 | following paid
Month
The Provident | Provident 18.19 April  2021- [ 15% of the Not yet
Fund Act, 1952 | Fund March 2022 paid
= Month
The Provident | Provident 57.96 April  2022- [15% of the | Not yet
Fund Act, 1952 | Pund September following paid
2022 Month
b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not deposited
the following dues o acgount of dispute with the appropriate authority: X ; QFO




(Rs.in Lakhs) g

r = ‘Period  to | Forum
Nature of Dues | Amount ;‘lhio‘:.l};t the E?;umte is Remarks
relates pending i
Income Tax 2,69 AY.20201 | CIT Date of filing of
Appeals, appeal -
Kol-1 06/01/2022
Income Tax 13.39 AY. 201920 |CIT Date of filing of
Appeals, | appeal <
Kol-2 08/10/2020
Income Tax BMU [AY.201617 |c Date of filing of
Appeals, | appeal =
Kol-2 25/02/2021
14 Income  Tax [ Income Tax 5.39 AY. 2014-15 DCIT, Letter submitted
( Act, 1961 Circle 42), ufs 154 on
i = Kol 25.09.2019
Income  Tax | Income Tax . | 2559 AY.2013-14 | CIT Date of filing of
‘| Act, 1961 Appeals, appeal -
; Kol-2 21/02/2020 &
issi of
JF response on
| | 11.03.2021 J

i ' (Rs. in Lakhs)
& Nature of ik i
; B . A
; i:c?udowjnging Name of | not paid pﬁmmﬂ'l;fm DueDate |N° ©Of days
| debt EanG ;:te [ e delay or unpaid
I securities :
| i it;rgab 2.89 Principal 31-05-22 1
.’I . Banl 2.89 and Interest 30-04-22 30
-____—-——-___ = -
{ 7 - ;un';alb 2.69 Principal 31-05-22 30
f B tl::ul 269 and Interest | 28-08.22 3
| ) __‘J —

g b). According to the information and explanations given to us, )
” been declared willful defaulter by any bani or financial institution or any Jender.




;:) h:ouropinionandbﬂsedoninfcrmaﬁmanduplmuﬂonsghrentnusbyﬂte
management, the company has not taken any term loan during the year and
hence, reporting under clause 3(xi) () of the order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure
performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial statement of the
company, we report that no fund raised on short term basis has been used for
longhermpuxposebytheoompany.

€) In our opinion and based on examinations of the book of records, the company
does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting
* under clause 3 (xi) (e) and (f) of the order is not applicable.

a) According to the information ‘and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books and records, the Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or .further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year, Therefore clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the
company,

_ b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books and records, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially

or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore clause 3(x)(b) of the order is
not applicable to the company,

During the course of our emumﬁonsofﬂmebooksmdrecordsofﬂwmmpan}r,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India
and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
byﬂleCompanyorentheCumpawbyitsofﬁoemoremployeeshasbeennoﬁeed
or reported during the course of our au; it nor we have been informed of any such
cases by the management. Accordingly, clause 3 (xi) (a) to (c) of the Order is not
applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (i) (2) to (c) of the Order is not applicahla.

Aémrdjngtoﬁlehfomaﬁonandexplanaﬁomgiventousmdbaaedoncur
examination of the books and records, transactions with the related parties are in

a)haurupimm&ueCompanyhasmadequateintemalauditsystem
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business,

to the Company during the year and ll date, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures,




.

X,

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, provision of the clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Finance activities during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the _
Order is not applicable.

c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3
(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of examination of financial statements, the company has not incurred
cash losses during the financial year 2022-23 covered by our audit but incurred

cash loss of Rs, 145,68 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditor during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3(xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, howeve, state that this is not
an assurarce as to the future viability of the company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they fall due for payment.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the company and
examination of the books and records, the company does not fall under the criteria
to spend any sum of money for CSR activity as per section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, clause 3{xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the company and
based on Our examination of the books and records, the company does net have




4 any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, clause 3(xxi) of the order is

/ i not applicable.

ForV, Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 311017E .

¥l et (NAVEEN TAPARIA)

Place: Kolkata ' Partner
Date: 30t May, 2023 Membership No. 058433
UDIN: 23058433BGVZYV4481



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph-2(f) on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our Report of
even date to the members of Durrung Tea Estate Limited on the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31st March, 2023)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Durrung Tea Estate '
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31t March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s-policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
repurh'.ng. e A

%




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
Teceipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding preveniiom or Himely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

hou:api:ﬁmmeCompanyhas,inaﬁmtedalrespm,ahadeqmte internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
Teporting were operating effectively as at 31¢t March, 2023, except as reported under Basis for
Qualified Opinion and under Emphasis of Matter, based on the internal control over financial
Teporting q-itm'iaestablishedby&leCcmpany.cunsldenng' ing the essential components of internal
nontrolsta’sedinﬂ).eGuidazweNobemAuditofIntemalFinmda]Conhglsmermecial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For V, Binghi & Assuciates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 311017

= _ (NAVEEN TAPARIA)

Tlace: Kolkata Partner

Date: 30t May, 2023 P 1 Membership No. 058433
.‘f‘u

UDIN: 23058433BGVZYV4481



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

(Amoant in Lakhs)
Bote No _ As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
Nom=Current Assels

{a) Property, Plantand Equipment 3a BI8.41 B54.67
(&) Goodwill 3b 2358 253
() Other Intangible Ascels 3b 018 018
{d) Financial Asseis
(i} Investments 4 000 0.00
(if) Cther Financial Assets 5 1989 2368
{e} Othier Nem-Current Assets (] 328 328
Total Non - Current Assels #54.29 914,55
Current Assets
(6] lnventories 7 19147 158,50
(&) Diological Asssts other than Bearer Plants 8 218 445
{r) Financial Assets
{i] Trade Receivables 9 2534 2140
{tf) Cach and Cash Equivalents 10 15.02 310
{iif) Other Financial Assets 11 522.38 54786
{d) Current Tax Aszeta (Net) 12 80.33 5076
{=) Other Current Assets 13 242 B9 68.49
Total Current Assets 1.049.62 854,96
Total Assets 190391 1,759.51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Lauity Share Capital 14 72 n72
(5) Other Equity 15 (32.57) 13477)
Total Equity 61,15 (41.05)
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabllitles
(a) Financial Liahilities
Borrowings 16 66,75 10539
(b) Deferred Tax Linbilitles (Net) 17 2018 302
Total Non- Current Liabilities 86.93 135.60
Current Liabilities
(a) Finanecial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 1,309.38 1,328 83
(i) TradePayables 14
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Smail
Entarprises 4.70 =
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than Micro and Small Enterprises 13228 9231
(i) Other Financial Lisbilities 20 67.95 4B.98
(b) Other Current Libilities 2 20186 157.43
{¢) Provisiens 2 29,56 3741
Tetal Current Liabilitles 1,755.83 1,664.96
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,903,91 1,759.51
Significant Accounting Policies and Critical
Estimates & Judgements Ae?,
The accompanyling notes 1 to 54 form an § 1 part of the financial
As per our report annexed For and on behalf of the Board
For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Accontants y /\ M
Firm Regn. No.: 311017E - 3

Nasee Eafasder | % ] ke J}wﬁm/

(Naveen Taparia) Mirityunjay Jalan Avantika Jalan
Fartner Managing Director Director
Membership No.: 058432 DIN : 7259266 DIN: 03333925

Flace: Kolkata o

Date: 30th May, 2023 fkl NaJ L
Namrata Nahata /0. Maheshwad

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

{Amount in Lakhs)
Note For the year ended For the year ended

No 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Income:
I Revenue from Operations bic 1,545.71 1.29261
I Other Income 24 113.86 16,37
11 Total Income (I + II) 1,659.57 _hﬂ_ﬂ.gﬂ
IV Expenses:
Caost of Raw Materials Consumed 25 42,19 33,49
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 26 7.22 -
Chanpes in Inventories of Finished Goods 27 (23.52) 932
Employee Benefils Expense 28 058.13 951.31
Finance Costs 2 45.44 41,00
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 55.48 BT
Other Expenses 30 47226 44572
Total Expenses (IV) 1,567.40 1,534.55
vV Profit/ (Loss) before tax (III-IV) 9217 (225.57)
W1 Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax {10.02) 10.18
VIL Profitf (Loss) for the year (V-VI) 10221 (244.75)
VI Other Comprehensive Income
Hewm that will not be reclassified fo profil or loss
Change in fair value of FVTOCI Equity Instrument - {0.24)
Income Tax on above
Other Comprehensive Income (net of Tax) - (0.24)
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (comprising
Profit/{Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)(VII-
Vi) 10221 (244.99)
Eamings per Equity Share (Nominal value Rs. 10/~ each)
Basic 10.91 (26.12)
Diluted 10.91 (26.12)
(Also Refer Nate No. 38)
Significant Accounting Paolicies and Critical Estimates & 1&2
Judgements

The accompanying notes 1 to 54 form an integral part of the financial statenents,

As per our report annexed For and on behalf of the Board
For V, Singhi & Associates
Charteved Accountants [ '}/
Firm Regn, No.: 31107E — = )
L A8 Qe A pu——
& % Mrityunjay Jalan Avantika Jalan
(Naveen Taparia) \ Managing Director Director
Pariner DN = 7259366 DIN: 03333925
Membership No.: 058433

3
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th May, 2023 NW MO.'\H}‘L %:;"w;;.n
MNameata Nahata D. Maheshwari
Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31sr MARCH, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit/ (Loss) befors tax 0217 (226.57)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 5548 5872

Finance Costs 4544 41.00

Changes in fair value of Biological Assets 226 {1.26)

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.87) 101.31 - 93.45
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 193.48 {133.11)
Adjustments For Changes In Working Capital :

(Increase)/ Decrease Trade & Other Receivables (148.87) 10216

(Increase)/ Decrease Inventories (22.57) 19.08

Increase/ (Decrease) Trade & Other Payables 110.531 (61.13) 33.80 155.02
Net Cash Flow/(Outflow) Before Tax 13235 21.90

Tax Refund / (Paid) [9.56) (15.05)
Met Cash Inflowf{Outflow) from Operating Activities (A) 122.79 6.86

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchese of Property, Plant and Equipment (9.96) (39.04)

Sales proceeds from Vehicle 261 -
Met Cash Inflow/(Outflow) Investing Activities (B) (7.35) (39.04)

C, Cash Flow from Financial Activities:

Repayment of Long term Borrowings (38.64) 13.27

Repayment af Short term Borrowings (19.45) 4985

Finance Costs (45.44) (41.00)
Net Cash Intlow/{Outflow) Financing Activities (C) {103.52) 2211
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A + B+ C) 1192 {10.07)
Cash #& Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.10 1317
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 15.02 3.10
Cash & Cash Equivalents consists of :

Cash in hand 14.02 1.60
Balances with Bank - 1.50
Chegue in Hand 1.00 -
15.02 3o
NOTE:

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
(b) The above Cash Fiow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method” a5 set vut in the Ind AS - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.
(c) Previous years figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever found necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report annexed

For V. Singhi & Assaciates

Chartered Aecountaints )

Firm Regn. Now 311017E i W T

; 3 :

{Naveen Taparia) Mrityunjay Jalan Avantika Jalan

Partner el Managing Director Director

Membership Mo.: 058433 : DIN : 7259366 DIN: 03335925

Place: Kolkata "

Date: 30th May, 2023 5

i Nohaden e

Namrata Nahata D. Maheshwarl

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
(Amount in Lakhs)
A, Equity Share Capital
Balanceatthe | Changes inEquify |Restated balanceatthe | oo 0 o0 vt share | Balance atthe end of the
‘beginning of the | Share Capilal due to heginning of the capital during the period reposting petind
reporting peziod | prior perlod erors reporting period
1) Current Reporting Feriod 9372 - - - 9
2) Previous Reporting Period 9372 = - 9372
B, Other Equity
Reserves and Suwplas Other Reserves
Other items of Other Total
General Reserve | Retained Earnings Capital Reverve Comprehensive Income =
FVOCH Bquity
Balance as al 1st April, 2022 16957 G1010)| 2832 (21.78) [iE
for the vear - 10221 102
AT Vi s on Equity
Instrumenis - i = % =
[Toml Comprehensive Income for the
curront year _169.77 (207.90) 237 | {21L.76) (31.57)
Balance as at 315t March, 2023 165.77 (207.90) 2832 {20.76) (3157
Balance as at st April, 2021 165.77 (85.33) 2032 (21.52) 11122
Frolit for the = (244.75) % - (244.75)
Al Vi nges on Equily
i : - (n24) f2a
cureont vear 18457 {310.10) 2832 (21.76) (133.77)
al: at F1st March, 2022 165.77 {310:10] Mg (21.75) {13077
As per our report annexed For and on helalf of the Board
For V. Singhi & Associates
Chartered Aveountants

Firm Regn. Now S11017E

(Naveen Taparia)

Pariner
Membership No; 058433

Flace: Kaolkata
Date:

o |

J':l\‘-\z},)\.

Miityunjay Jalan
Managing Director
DIN : 7259366

Nawaade Nadhate

MNamrata Nahata
Company Secretary

’
B

Avantika Jalan
Director
DIN: 03333925

~
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Chief Financial Officer



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the year 1981 as a Public Limited Company under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and domiciled in India. The Registered office of the
Company is located at Flat No. 2C, Paramount Apartment, 25, Ballygunge Circular Road,
Kolkata-700019. The Company is engaged in cultivation, manufacture and sale of tea. Its shares
are listed on Calcutta Stock exchange in India. The Company is in the process of delisting of its
shares and had applied to the Calcutta Stock Exchange for the same purpose on December 2,
2019.

The Financial Statements for the vear ended 315t March, 2023 have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 30% May, 2023.

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

11 BASIS OF PREPARATION
1.1.1 Compliance with Ind AS

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adepted or revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

1.1.2 Classification of Cwrent and Won~current

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Ind AS 1 - “Presentation of Financial
Statements” and Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,2013. Based on the nature of products and the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of

cutrent/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

\rp—



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd...)

1.1.3 Historical Cost Convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India under the historical cost convention, except for the following:

i) Certain Investments in equity instruments that is measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income;

i) Certain Biological Assets (including unplucked green leaves) measured at Fair value less cost
to sell.

1.14 Use of Estimates

The Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affects the
reported amount of assets and labilities as at the Balance Sheet date, the reported amount of
revenue and expenses for the periods and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet
date. The estimales and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial
statements. Actual results could differ from estimates.

1.2  SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is a single segment Company mainly engaged in the cultivating, manufacturing
and selling of Tea. Therefore, Segment Reporting is not applicable.

1.3  FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Indian Rupee (INR) which is the functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
using the exchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
Liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign Currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

14  REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts

disclosed as revenue are inclusive of tea claim and are net of sales return, Goods and Service Tax,
trade allowances and amount collected on behalf of third parties,

Vi



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd...)

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and significant risk and reward
incidental to sale of products is transferred to the buyer.

1.5 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance fhat the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate
and presented within other operating income.

Government grants relating to the acquisition/ construction of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the Statement of Profit
and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within
other operating income,

1.6 INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period,

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which
the Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in
accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of
Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entiflement. The Company reviews the same at each
Balance Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal Income
Tax during the specified period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

g
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NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd...)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
Lability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Laoss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

1.7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

1.8 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, if any.

1.9 INVENTORIES

Raw materials including harvested tea leaves, produced from own gardens are measured at
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost being the fair value less cost to sell at the point of
harvest of tea leaves,

Raw-materials of purchased tea leaves, Stores and Spare Parts are stated at cost and Finished
Goods are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Finished Goods comprises
direct material, direct labour and appropriate portion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure.

Cost of inventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average method. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

\gole—~
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course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessaty to
make the sale.

1.10 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

1.10.1 Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and
e those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of cash flows,

1.10.2 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt
instruments into the following categories:

» Amortised Cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

s Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for
collections of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows reprecent eolely payments of principal and interest, are measurad at fair value through
other comprehensive income (EVOCI). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or

FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income.

W.
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EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Also, where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable choice
on initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in
Other Comprehensive Income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.10.3 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

1104 De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when
¢ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

= Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Whete the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Com pany
has not retained control of the financial asset.

1.10.5 Income recognition

Interest Income
Interest Income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment
is established.
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111 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

1111 Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Campany recognises all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in
the case of a financial liability not at fair value through Profit and Loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instrumenis.

1.11.2 Subsequent Measurement

All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for
those mentioned below,

1.11.3 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Lass

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
-and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes detivative finarcial instruments
entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

For liabilities designated as Fair Value through profit or loss, fair value gains/losses attributable
to changes in own credit risks are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. These
gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to Profit or Loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value uf such liability
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

112 BIOLOGICAL ASSFETS

Tea leaves growing on tea bushes are measured at fair value less cost to sell with changes in fair
value recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
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any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation Methods, Estimated Useful Lives and Residual Value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method lo allocate their cost, net of their
residual values on the basis of useful lives prescribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013,
Item of Fixed Assets for which related actual cost do not exceed Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in
the year of purchase. In respect of the following assets, useful lives have been considered as per
Schedule IT and are as under:-

# Plant & Machinery  :Ranging from 3 to 15 years

* Software ;6 years

s Buildings : 60 years

s Furniture & Fixture : 10 years

¢ Motor Vehicles : Ranging from 8 to 10 years
e Bearer Plant : 77 years

s Computers : 3 years

Bearer plants are depreciated from the date when they are ready for commercial harvest,

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. The residual values are not more than 5% of the Original Cost of the
assels.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in Profit or Loss within other gains/ (losses).

1.14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1141 Computer Software

Coots oassociated with maintaining software programmes arc recognised oo an expense as
incurred. Costs of purchased software are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the
point at which the asset is available for use.

1142 Goodwill

Goodwill on account of business combination is included in Intangible Assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicale thal it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated losses.

W



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd...)

1.14.3 Amortisation Methods and Periods
The Company amortises Computer Software with a finite useful life using the straight-line
method over the following periods:

Computer software : 6 yeats

1.15 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Goodwill and Other intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
arnount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating
units). Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

116 PROVISION, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS, LEGAL
OR CONSTRUCTIVE

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requited to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used lo
delermine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of ime is recognised as inferest expense.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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1.17 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

1.17.1Short-term Employee Benefits Obligations

These are recognised at the undiscounted amount as expense for the year in which the related
service is rendered.

1.17.2 Other Long-term Employee Benefits Obligations (Unfunded)

The cost of providing long-term employee benefits is determined using Projected Unit Credit
Method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period in which they occur. Long term employee benefit obligation recognised in the Balance
Sheet represents the present value of related obligation.

1.17.3 Post-employment Benefit Obligations

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are
recognised as expenditure for the year,

In case of Employee Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing the benefit is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the Other Comprehensive Income for the
period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, if any, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, where
funded, Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic
benefit available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in futurc contributions to the
plan.

1.17.4 Bonus Plans

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonus. The Company recognizes a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

"



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Contd...)

118 EQUITY

Equity Shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

119 DIVIDENDS

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and
no longer at the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

1.20 EARNINGS PER SHARE
1,201 Basic Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

® The Profit/Loss attributable to owners of the Company
¢ By the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the financial year.

1.20.2 Diluted Earnings per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account:

¢ The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential Equity Shares, and

o The weighted average number of additional Equity Shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential Equity Shares
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1.21 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assels are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher on an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets
(cash-generating units), Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

1.22 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

123 BORROWING COSTS

Interest and other borrowing cosls allributable to yualifying assets are capitalised. Other interest
and borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.24 ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements and Notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs as per the Schedule - TIT to the Companies Act, 2013, unless otherwise stated.

1.25 LEASES

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Leases as lessee (Assets taken on lease)

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets, When
the company acts as lessor, it determines at the lease commencement whether lease is Finance
lease or operating lease. i
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To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is
the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this
assessment, the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major
part of the economic life of the asset.

All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in
the lease. Principal component of the lease receipts are adjusted against outstanding receivables
and interest income is accounted by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the nel
investment.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of
the benefit derived from the asset given on lease,

1.26 RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as stated below. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023.

1.26.1 Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires tha entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact
of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

1.26.2 Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments
to Ind AS B to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone
financial statements.

1.26.3 Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences, The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statement.



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

NOTE 2 - USE OF JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments
and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware
of chanpes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.



-fwedinoy) aup Jo swreu i i axe sepaadoad ajqeacumuT JoSpaYp AN AL

Anoag pue paa(] 2PLL

“uzwaSpwnpy 213 fo 97901 1437 49d $0 S1 PAUNIUL IS0D)

SEL98 L9758 LI'8EE - TLES Y8 £8°Z61°T - Y'GE 08°€SI'T oL
060 801 66°¢ - 9L e £9°S - 560 757 saayndwoy
£e'e 9% Lk 28 = i a6l 299 = a5TT 8768 SS[oaA
TL9 99'9 756 = 950 95’8 LL9L - 0610 £T6L SOTMIXT] PU SIMIIIN]
9E 46T 10°492 65°6ST - DE'6E 6T¥IL 19028 %68 So'1Ig Lisunpepy puw uerg
€661 6971 LEEL = e 9601 676C1 - - 6C6EL sBurpymg
oL 10¥ F50LF e - fo L6'9E SETF - 6751 LOET WER] Imag
S}y 2|qIdue),
207 PN | 7208 PN | Z50% P | sweunsnlpy | 120y | TEUT WP | T20T BRI suswsnlpy SR 20T
wERSY | Blgwsy | sigmwsy  |fspsodsiq uo WL | Soeodn | wsieesy | fmsodsig | ‘udy js1 3 sV
M¥DOTd 14N NOLLYIDHEdIa 30014 SSO¥D
(zax snopraig)
£9%58 15808 LV6LE BUFL §¥'sg LUSEE BR'/8TL Z6'FL LG E8T6LT ®IoL
9oL a6l (= = 40 66'C Sz - £60 £9°¢ saajndwo))
oF TP $9€E LT81 8TFT 80°Z LT p - O 6L - 7459 SPIPA
999 e €701 - 160 756 (191 8 % AR SaImX1] Pu? SINjIn,g
107492 66'97T RL°TEE 61'6E 65€5C LL1ES AR 09028 Amunpey| pueued
TE'STL TY0EL 08'51 e L1 ZHorL ers 6T 6EL s3uipmmg
P6 11T 09'20F $94E - W5 e e d 60'L GETER Jue|d Jeieay
syissy a[qrBur],
Zeog pIeW | €20z WP | €207 PN | simawsnipy e aprepy | gT0T PR | siueunsnipy SR Te0T
ISTE ISV ISIE I BY I esy | fspesodsig ug g 0idn 181 e 5% fesodsig | 7T “rdy isp e sy
D014 1AN NOLLVDAUJAC YOO SS0UD
(syprey us unousy)

INHWJINOH ANY LNV ALISdOMI

£20Z "HOMVIA LSIE AFCNT SVHA HHL H0d SINTWHLV LS TVIDONVNIL 4HL 40 LUV DNIWHOI SHION
OHLOATT HLVLSH VAL DNOTINA

g -HI1ON




£207 "HDUVA LSTE QIANT ¥VIA HHL HOA SINTWALYIS TVIONYNEI HHL 40 LaAVd ONINNOI SELON
CALINTT ALVLISE VAL ONNTENd

JuanaSeuppy wy fo appnfiee) doed s sp passon 1509
80 80 £re €FE g 19€ [T
80 BL0 eFE €FE 9% I9€ AwM0S
sEesy ajqiueuy 1 (1
ESTT EE 2L = 85'TT £57T 1iMpooD ¥
202 "YU | ZZ0T WML | ZT0E goreN | swewusnlpy | 0T UM | ZZ0T "HarepN | syusunsmlpy e
BIgIe sy LR L wigwEsy  |fpsodaqug | TP | ge gan ISTE 10 5 fmsodsyg | SUOHPRY Trdy jspn sy
Mo0TH 1AN NOLLVSLLUONY MD0Td §50TD
{rea) snopaaig)
TLTT La EFE £FE S92 €19z mog,
810 B0 eFE €he g T9°E IRMYOS
S1ssY AqIBuniug 0 (11
€57 €5 E s * £5TE - £57L IMpoc {1
CEOTMMVIN | €Z0CUMENL | £Z0T WoreW | siwsunsnlpy | 2T IR | €707 YorepN | smumsmipy 44
ISTE I SY ISIE RSy WIgw sy | fpesodsiqup T i ovdn EIE 5V fiesoda | PPV quay jerp sy
HO01Y 19N NOLLY¥SLLHOWY D018 SSOUD
{sTp{e7] Uy junoury}
SIASSY TIHIDNV NI
qE - 240N




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at 315t March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022

NOTE-4

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Equity Investments Designated-at FVQCI
Investments in Equity Instruments - Others

Unquoted
24,000 (315t March, 2022: 24,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid up in Wearit Glabal Limited*® 0.00 000
000 o0
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.00 0.00
Agevegate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -
* Fair value based on Financial Statements of FY 2021-22,
A Awmount is below the rounding off norms ndopted by the compary,
NOTE-5
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good by the management)
Security and Other Deposits
Tea Beard Default Reserve Fund*
For Principal (Refer note below A and C) - 222
For Interest  (Refer note belors B and C) - 178
NABARD Deposit™ 0.02 0.02
Assam Electricity Board (Interest Bearing)** 19.87 1987
19.89 2388

“ A. Pre payment of loan taken from Teu Board .o, 25% of installment amount which ivs been transferred to Security
Deposit Account adjustable against laet installment, as wler -
1) Loan I Instaltment aniount Rs 4.68 Lakhs ngninst winch deposit is Rs 1.17 Lakhs
i) Lot 11 Instailment amount Rs 2.34 Lakhs ngainst whicis deposit is Rs 0.58 Lakls
iti) Loan I11 h:mﬂﬂmt amount Rs 1.88 Lakhs agminst which deposit s Rs 0.46 Lakls
B. A t t nterest wiich has been adjusted against last payment [Refer note 16(a)].
C. During ﬂle mﬂml‘ ymr the above deposits has been adfustel.
=*Amoun! with NABARD & Assam State Electricity Board has beer confirmed by the managenent

NOTE-6
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS*
{u. ed, considered good by 2 t)

Government Authorities 0.23 023
Other Deposits 3.05 305
* As Confirmed by the management
3% B
NOTE-7
INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and certified by the management)
a) Raw Material (Green Leaves-/At Fair Market Value) 161 3.06
b} Finished Goods (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Tea 58.03 : 3471
¢) Stores and Spare Parts (At cost)” 121.84 121.14
*Stock includes Rs. 121.84 Lakhs for witich confirmation is pending
from managemerit
181.47 158.90
NOTH-8
BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER FLANTS
(As taken, valued and certified by the management)
Eair Value of Biological Assets Other than Bearer Plants 218 445
(Ten Lenues ready to be Pluched) § L
218 445

o



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at Tist March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
NOTE-9
TRADE RECETVABLES i oo
alan iy T 3
i s ) 2534 2140
9(a) |Ageing a5 on 3151 Manch, 2023 OQuistanding as on 31.03.4023 for following pesiods from due date
Tartlcul, Less Mhan 6 mecnths | 6 awinihs =1 year 1-2 years 21 yeara Mare than 3 years Total
Undisputed brade receivables considered pood 18,38 - 0.15 - - 18.53
Uradisputed Trade Rucelvalles = which have
signiticunt increase in credit risk & . » = s 2
Unelisputed Trade ~ coedlt i - 5 > %
Disputed Trade Receivables- considensd good = = = 281 = 581
puted Trade Racenvablas - which have sigy
Lncrease in credit risk = - - - - -
Disputed Trads Receivabies - credit imypoi = - = = = -
TOTAL 19,36 - 015 551 - 34
9{1:)!31\:5 an on 51si March, 2022 o diny as on 31.03.2022 for following periods from due date .
Particulans Lexs than 6 memths | 6 months =1 year 1-2 yoars 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Undispristed trade recelvables conskdared good 260 031 1456 1.93 200 .40
| Indisputed Trade Rocelvabiss - which have
significant increase in credit risk = = - = - 4
Undlisputed Trade Recelvables - credit b paired - - - - - -
Disputed Trade Raceivablas- idered goad - = - - - =
Disputed Trade biles ~ which have sigiili
in credit risk - - - - - .
ispruled Trade Beceivables = credit im) - - - - - -
TOTAL 260 .31 1456 193 a0 140
NOTE- 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Scheduled Banks
InCurrent Accounts - 150
Caslin handd (As certifiod by the management) 1402 1.60
Tix dedducied ut Source of Rs. 9.5 lukhs on Costt sithdyumals{Previons Year fs5.59 Laidis)
Cheques in hand 100 =
1502 310
NOTE-11
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good by the )
Advances to Body Corporate (25 confirmed by management)
- From Related Parties (Note 36) 15835 W]
- From Cithers 36404 513.04
52238 537.86
* ol paidd due b enfrangement i the rate of land revenas and agains! wihih a case is pending with Guwahati High Courd,
NOTE-12
CURRENT TAX ASSETS ( NET)
Advance paymen: of Incoms Tax* B0.23 20.78
* Ned of prowizions R, 7.71 Lakiis (Previous Yewr Rs.10.23 Lakis)
50,33 5076
NOTE-13
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Usscused, considersd good by the 0
Subsidy Res ble (as confirmed by the manag £ 1646 1646
Advance to Suppliers 183.61 193
Advance to Employees 301 3.94
Loy of Assam- Finance Dept -3 1Z30
Frepaid Expenses 1.67 146
Balances with Statutory Authorities 3269 2581
Other Receivables 544 632
24289 6309




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 51st MARCH, 2023

{Ampunt in Lakhs)

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
NOTE -14
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
a) Authorised
10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 100.00 100.00
b) Tssued, Subscribed and Paid Up
937,200 (31.03.2021: 9,37,200) Equity Shares of Ks. — wamn
10/~ each fully Paid Up o
93.72 o TSR
¢ Reconciliation of the Sheres vutstanding al the beginning and at the end of the year
Mos Amount Nos Amount
At the beginning of the reporting year 97,200 W72 9,3/,200 %72
Add: Change during the year - & - i
At the end of the reporting year 9,37,200 93.72 9,3%,200 93.72
d) The shareholders have the right to declare and approve dividends, as proposed by the Board of Directors for any
financial year, to be paid to the members according to (heir rights and interest in the profits. However, no larger
dividend shall be declared than is recommended by the Board of Directors,
e) Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled i one vote per share,
£) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive any of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of Equily Shares held by the sharehclders.
g) Details of the Sharcholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of shares % of No. of % of
Wame ut Shvrehaliae held Holding  sharesheld _ Holding
Mr. Mahadeo Jalan 58,000 6.19% 58,000 6.19%
Mprs, Sarala Jalan 67,000 715% 67,000 7.15%
Mrs, Kumkum Jalan 00,000 10.67% 1,00,000 10.67%
Jalans [nvestments Private Limited 1,653,388 17.43% 163,388 17.43%
Marsingdass Surajmal Properties Private Timited 169,627 18.10% 1,69,627 18.10%
Jalan Indusiries Private Limited 1L,75,2%0 18.70% 1,75,290 18.70%
Jalan Holdings Private Limited 1,92,550 20.55% 1,92,550 20.55%
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declaration received from
the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial
ownerships of shares,
k) Details of Promoter’s Shareholding is as under
No. of shares | % of total shares | Y change
5L Fiiitits Masse held ag on | as on 31st March | during the
No. 31st March 2023 year
2023
1 [Mr. Mrityumjay Jalan 5,645 0.60% m
2 |Mrs. Avantika Jalan 5,700 0.61% r
3 |Mr. Mahadeo Jalan 2 53,000 6.19% ad
4 [Mrs, Sarala Jalan 57,000 7.15% =
5 |Mrs. Kumkum Jalan 1,00,000 10.67% =
TOTAL 2,36,345 25.22% -
No. of shares | % of total shares | % change
5l y held as on |as on 315t March | during the
No. Promter s Nuse 31st March 2022 year
2022
1 [Mr Mrityunjay Jalan 5.645 ﬂ.ﬁﬂ%’ =
2 |Mrs, Avantillcayhl:inn 5,700 al% -
3 |Mr. Mahadeo Jalan 58,000 £5.19% =
4 |Mrs, Sarala Jalan 67,000 7.15% -
5 |Mrs, Kumium Jalan 1,00,000 10.67% =
TOTAL 2,00,345 28235, -

e



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

NOTE-15
OTHER EQUITY
Reserve and Surplus
3) General Reserve
As per Jast Financial Statement
b) Retained Earnings
As per last Financial Statement
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the period as per the Statement of
Profitand Loss
Other Reserves
a) Capital Reserve
As per last Financial Statement
b) Other Comprehensive Income on Equily Instrument
As per last Financial Statement
Add: Changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments
NOTE- 16
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
BORROWINGS
SECURED
a) Term Loans
From Tea Board under SPTF Schome (Refer Note 5)
(i) ToanT
Less: Repayable within one year
() Loanil
Less: Repayable within one year *
(i) LoanIl
Less: Repayable within one year *
(k) Covid Loan (Refer Note 16.1)
Less: Repavable within ong year *
(¢) GECLLoan& GECL 1.0 (Refer Note 16.1)

Add: Addition during the year
Less: Repayable within one year ®

16.1 Security Clause
The term loans are secured by way of hypothecation of entire current assets both present and future of the Company.
The additional WCTL or non-fund based facility granted under ECLGS shall rank second charge with the existing
credit facilities in terms of cash flows {inchuding repayments) and securities, with charge on the assets financed
uniger the schieme. Facility under the scheme is sceured through Guarantee coverage from NCGTC.

Terms of Kepayment

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at 31st Mareh, 2023 As at 3lst March, 2022
169.77 169.77
(311.10) (65.35)
10221 (245.75)
(208.80) (311.10)
(39.12) (141.33)

28322 2822
(21.76) (71.52)
- (0.24)
(21.76) (21.76)
(32.57) (134.77)

- 468
- *&

- 3.51

= 351

= 371

4 371

- 568

= 8.68

10811 72.72

= 65.00
4136 = 32.35

66.75 105.39

66,75 105.39

The GECL term loan was repayable in 28 monthly instalments being out of which 12 monthly installments have been
paid as of 31st March, 2023 and the remaining 16 monthly installments of Rs. 2.6% Lakhs each are payable by June,

2024. The GECL 1.0 loan is repayable in 36 monthly instalments of Ks. 1.51 Lakhs each are payable by Oclober, 2026

e



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

{(Amount in Lakhs)
_Asat3lstMarch, 2023 _Asat 31t March, 2022
NOTE- 17
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Nrt)
Deferred Tax Liabilites 2831 3824
Wat Cred it Entitlement Aceount {803 {8.0%)
20.16 30.21
NOTE-18
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED LOANS
(Repayable on demand)
From Ponjab Nattonal Bank ( Brstwhile United Bank of Tndia)

«Cash Credit [Refer Note Delow]* 452,19 45677
Wehicle Loan from a NEFC [Refer Note Below] = 330 5.55
UNSECURED LOANS
(Repeyable on demand)

From o Dinector [Refier Mote 36] (Non-Interest Dearlng) 195 1385
From Body Corporates
-Erom Related Partles [Refer Note 35] (Non-Interest Bearing) 807.58 795.91
-From other (Non-Interest Bearing) - 326
Current Maturities of Long Torm Debt
From Tea Board under SPTF Scheme

Loan T - 468

Loan 11 - as

Loan I s an
From Covid Loan - B8
From GECL Loan 4136 3233

150938 192853

161 Nature of Securlty

¥TTia Caeh Credit from Pusthsb National Banle [Eratrelels Limiber! Bamle of i) iz seewra by firet Epuitable Morignge of Land & Buddings (teasehold property) md dypothecation of Plant

& Muchunerics, Fuririture & Fixlures and Velticles of te Company and Typolieorhony deirge cter cabive Séocks, Book Delits and nll other Cme:ttmk of the Company, both presant amd

]nmmmdmwm&gtmmfurwnymnmnfm&mmymamlwukwmw«md tigeliyp of | e e mmalie aweis
of Jul g

t Pot, Lid The sild secnrities hve nlso been exiemded fo secure Hoe FITT Loan, Comid Loan aud GECL Logh,

[ abave loan {5 sequred against Hypothecation of the Vehicle

MOTE =19
TRADE PATADLES
Payablas for goods anid Sprvices®
Total outstanding dues of micto enlarprises arul:m!l nnhrpwlsas 470 *
Total ling clues ather Han micro T
small enlerprises 13228 €«
136,28, Rl
Dutsitaniing as on ILOA.2023 for following perindn fom dur date of payment
Tessthand | 1-2Vears ZAvears | More (han 3 Years olal
470 = - = 470
106.39 13.45 10.98 L45 13235
111.09 13.45 1098 145 13655
‘Dulsfaniing as om 31082022 for following periods from due date of payment
el | davess | owes | doriwm)Vem Teil
363 1441 Ak 0.71 5531
7383 ETETT LT 1 231
* I Hiss basis of infarmmiion provided by the msimgement
WOTE - 20
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITTES
Iralirest Acceusd and due en secuved laans fram Bank and/or Tes Board 062 0.20
Employee Tenefil Payable A4 hl 36.21
Uither Fayables 737 1257
(Inchudes Rs, 0,05 Lakhs from MSME (PY Nil)
57,05, "5
NOTE-21
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Balances with Scheduled Banks
In Corrent Accounls a7 -
{Temporary book overdrawe bulinces)
Advance from Customers pa: el -
Advare froe Dily Tk 530 5.50
Payable W Slalubory Aulhorities ™ % %
* Inieluries Tax Dedncted ot Souree, Lease Rewd to Assain Gopf, Professhon Tar and Providen: Fund and (Hiers
NOIE-a2
FROVISIONS f
ruvhiton for Buis foz 30.66 w4

W 0 v



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

NOTE - 23
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products -Tea
Sale of Stock-in-Trade
Other operating Revenue
Sale of Green Leaves

NOTE-24
OTHER INCOME
Compensation Against Land
Rental Income (Refer Note 41)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest on Income Tax refund
Miscellaneous Income

NOTE- 25
COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
(As certified by the management)

Green Leaf Purchased (100% Indigenous)

NOTE-26
PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Tea

NOTE-27

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS

Finished Goods

Opening Stock
Less: C]u.-sing Stock

NOTE- 28

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries and Wages*
Confributions to Provident and Other Funds
Staff and Labour Welfare Expenses

“Includes Remuneration to a Whole time Director Rs. 9 Lakhs

(Previous Year Rs, 6,75 Lakhs)

{Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
1,557.18 1,201.27
8.53 -
a 1.34
1,545.71 1,292.61
110.7e =
0.60 =
187 -
0.60 13.83
0.03 255
113.86 16.37
42.19 3349
42.19 33.49
7.22 =
7.22 o
34.71 45.03
56.03 34.71
(23.32) 10.32
827.40 82713
80.75 74.20
59.96 49.98
968.13 951.31




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023

{Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
NOTE-29
FINANCE COSTS
Interest ense
To Banks
On Cash Credit 29.56 26.24
On Term Loan 10.86 4042 10.38 36.62
To Tea Board on SPTF 0.87 1.40
'I'o others 0.57 -
On Car Loan 0.38 0.95 0.55 0.55
Other Borrowing Costs 320 243
- 53 T 4100
NOTE- 30
OTHER EXPENSES
Stores and Sparc Parts consumed
{as Certified) [100% Indigenous] 69.93 ©g.09
Green Leaf Consumed 1.45 (0.93)
Changes in Fair Value of Biclogical Assets 2.26 (1.26)
Power and Fuel 273.70 23033
Repaits & Maintenance:
To Building 3.90 6.91
To Machineries 1391 11.80
‘I'o Vehicles 2455 2223
To Others 6.47 48.82 2.88 43.82
Insurance 3.42 317
Rates and Taxes 2.32 3.84
Packing and Despatch Expanses 8.70 6.46
Brokerage and Commission and Tea Selling Expenses 31.88 36.18
General Charges 24.49 20,62
Legal and Professional Fees 438 157
Remuneération to Auditors
- For Statutory Audit 0.40 0.40
- For Tax Audit 0.10 0.10
- For Limited Review 0.40 0.30
- For Certification 0.01 091 0.05 0.85
T 47335 445.72




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

NOTE 31 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars | As at 31% March, 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

Disputed Income Tax Demand for the AY. 13-14 25.58 25.58
| Disputed Income Tax Demand for the A.Y. 14-15 5.38 5.38
| Disputed Income lax Demand for the A.Y. 16-17 18.13 18.13
Disputed Income Tax Demand for the A'Y. 19-20 13.39 13.39
Disputed Income Tax Demand for the AY. 20-21 2.69 2.69

NOTE 32 - LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

In the opinion of the management, the value of the realization of Long-term Loans and Advances
and Current Assets in the ordinary course of business would not be less than the amount at which
the same are stated in the Balance Sheet.

NOTE 33 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: GRATUITY

The Company's gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, covers the eligible employees and is
administered through a gratuity fund. Such gratuity fund, whose investments are managed by
trustees themselves, make payments to vested employees or their nominees upon retirement, death,
incapacitation or cessation of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary
and tenure of employment subject to maximum limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. Vesting occurs upon
completion of 5 years of service.

a) Liability in respect of Gratuity up to 31s March, 2023 comes to Rs. 440,53 Lakhs (Previous year
Rs. 372.37 Lakhs) as per Actuarial valuation against which the fund accumulation as on 31
March, 2023 is Rs. 0.73 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 0.73 Lakhs). Net Liability of Rs. 439.81 Lakhs
(Previous year Rs. 371.65 Lakhs) including Rs. 70,99 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 63.61 Lalkhs) for the
current year remained unprovided in this Financial Statements.

k-



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31¢ March, 2023

b) The following table sets forth the particulars in respect of Defined Benefits Plan of the Company:

Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO)

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Present Value of defined benefit obligation at the 372.37 347.32
beginning of the year
Current Service Cost 20.30 19.01
Interest Cost 27.18 23.90
Benefits Paid (2.84) (9.21)
Re-measurement (or Actuarial (gains/Losses) arising
from:
- Change in financial assumptions 3.45 (13.44)
- Change in demographic assumptions = 2
- Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs. 20.06 4.80
assumptions)
Benefits paid (2.84) (9.21)
Present Value of DBO at the end of Year 440.53 37237
Change in Fair value of Assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023 | 31+ March, 2022
| Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 0.72 0.72
Investment Income 0.05 0.05
Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognized in (0.05) (0.05)
Net Interest Expense
Actual Company Contribution 284 9.21
Fund Transferred z =
Employee Contributions = =
Benefits paid (2.84) (9.21)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 0.72 0.72

™




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Funded Status
Asat As at
31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Present Value of Obligation at end of the year 440.53 372.37
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 0.72 0.72
Funded Status [ Surplus/ (Deficit)] (439.81) (371.65)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -
Net Asset/ (Liability) unrecognised in the Balance Sheet (439.81) (371.65)
Reconciliation of Net Balance Sheet position
(Rs.InLakhs)
¢ For the year ended
FReR 315t Miarch, 2023 | 3lst March, 2022
Net'ass'et,! (L.Iabxi‘xty} unrecognized in balance sheet at the (371.65) 346.60
beginning of period
Expense unrecognized in Income Statement 47.43 42.86
Expense unrecognized in Other Comprehensive Income 23.56 (8.39)
Employer contributions 2.84 9.21
Net Acquisitions/ Business Combinations - -
Net asset/ (Liability) unrecognized in balance sheet at end
e 439,81 371.65
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. In Lakhs)
o For the year ended
FRsicplans 3ist March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Current Service Cost 20.30 19.01
Past Service Cost - -
Loss/ (Gain) on settlement - -
Net Interest (Income)/ cost on Net Defined Benefit
| Liability/(Asset) e e
Expense unrecognized in the Statement of Profit and 4743 4286
Loss 1 :




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

Other Comprehensive Income

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
Sy 3ist Maich, 2023 | 51st March, 2022
Actuarial (gains)/ losses due to:
Change in demographic assumptions - -
Change in financial assumptions 3.45 (13.44)
- Experience variance
(iae!? Actual experience vs. assumptions) A5 i
- Others - -
Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognized in 0.05 0.49
net interest expense : :
Re measurement (or Actuarial (gain),/Loss) arising =
because of change in effect of asset ceiling
Compenents of defined benefit costs unrecognized in 2356
: - (8.59
other Comprehensive Income
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
(Rs. In Lakhs)

2 As at As at
Fputinlore 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.20% 7.30% p.a.
(being consistent with yield on long term Govt. bonds)

Rate of Increase in Salaries 5.00% 5.00% p.a.
Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 2012-2014) 100%p.a. 100% p.a.
Normal Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Yearg
Attrition Rates, based on age (% p.a.)
- Upto 40 years 0.42 0.42
- From41 years to 54 years 0.18 0.18
More than 54 years 0.22 0.22
For the year ended
oAt Sist March, 2023 |31+ March, 2022
Current Defined Benefit Obligation 98.18 78.90
Non-Current Defined Benefit Obligation 342.36 293.47
Total Defined Benefit Obligation 440,53 37237

\9e-




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are
discount rate, expected salary increase and muortality. The Sensitivity Analysis below have
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant. The result of sensitivity analysis

is given below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended
Parbculars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+ 1%) 478.15 408.29 405.95 343.69
Salary Growth Rate (-/+ 1%) 406.63 479,52 342.21 407.16
Altrition Rate (-/+ 50%) 439.69 441.36 371.57 37317
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 439.45 441.59 371.35 373.38

NOTE 34 - PROVISION FOR LEAVE SALARY

No Provision has been made for leave salary (amount unascertained) payable to employees of the
Company. The same is being accounted for on cash basis.

NOTE 35 - SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on Segmental Reporting issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company is a single segment Company mainly engaged in
the cultivating, manufacturing and selling of Tea and therefore Segment Reporting is not applicable.

NOTE 36 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As per Indian Accounting Standard-24- Related Party Disclosures' issued by The Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India, the names of the related parties are given below:

1. Relationship with entities

A. Details of Associate Entities:
a. Jalan Holdings Private Limited

B. Key Management Personnel:
Ms, Avantika Jalan - Director

Mr. Dwija Das Chatterjee - Dircctor

o pn gD

Mr. Mritunjay Jalan - Managing Director

M. Vadakkillam Satheesan Nayar - Executive Director

My, Dharmendra Maheshwari - Chief Financial Officer

\@r |




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2023

f. Mrs. Namrata Nahata - Company Secretary w.e.f 1st July, 2022.

C. Companies over which Key Managerial Personnel or Relatives are able fo exercise
control / significant influence

a. Dinjoye Tea Estate Private Limited

b. Jalannagar Development Private Limited

¢. Jalan Industries Private Limited

d. Narsingdass Surajmal Properties Private Limited
e. Jalan Holdings Private Limited

f. Jalans Investments Private Limited

g. Jalannagar South Estate Private Limited

2. The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of

business;

SveRe Py s e

Re AE

(. n Lakche)

Mr. Mritunjay Jalan

Director's Remuneration

& Details relating to parties

Dinjoye Tea Estate Private Limited | Advance Taken/ 182.01 187.05
(given) (326.07) (129.40)
Jalan Holdings Private Limited Loan Taken/ 16.40 16.00
(Repaid) (0.15) (12.00)
Jalan Industries Private Limited Loan Taken / 11.00 38.05
(Repaid) (14.10) (4.25)
Jalannagar Development Private Advance Taken/ 512.85 159.91
‘Limited (given) Income (314.61) (91.34)
earned / Expenses
incurred on behalf of
Company
Mrityunjay Jalan Loan Taken/ 2.50 =
(Repaid) (12.50) (2.50)
Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Loan Taken/ 92.55 36.60
Private Limited (Repaid) (7.50) (32.75)
Jalans South Estate Private Limited | Advance Taken/ 29.10 48,35
(given) (81.32) (7.70)
Jalannagar Investments Private Advance Taken/ 1.50 -
Limited (given) (167.65) -

e



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

b. Balance at the year end

Dinjoye Tea Estate dvance Taken/ (57. ' b

Limited (given)

Jalan Holdings Private Limited Unsecured Loan Taken 147.45 131.20
Jalan Industries Private Limited | Unsecured Loan Taken 430.63 433.73
Jalanmagar Development Private | Advance Taken/ (18.60) (16.85)
Limited (given)

Mr. Mrityunjay Jalan Unsecured Loan Taken 4.95 14.95
Narsingdass Surajmal Properties | Unsecured Loan Taken 229,50 14445
Private Limited

Jalannagar South Estate Private Advance Taken/ (68.69) (16.48)
Limited (given)

Jalans Investments Private Advance Taken/ (167.65) (1.50)
Limited (given)

NOTE 37 - INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current Income Tax

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of - -
previous year

Total Current Tax Expense - -
Deferred Tax (10.09) 19.18
(Decrease)/ Increase in Deferred Tax Liabilities (1.57) (1.98)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Deferred Tax Assets 043 0.55
Deferred Tax (10.04) 1918
Income Tax expense is attributable to:

Profit/loss from continued operations 102.21 (245.75)
Profit from discontinued operations - -
TOTAL 10221 (245.75)

£ \g&'



DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2023

NOTE 38 - EARNINGS PER SHARE (EFS)

Basic and Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the profit or loss and number of shares used in the basic and diluted EPS

computations:

Profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity holders (Rs. in Lakhs) 102.21 (245.99)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing 807 9.37
Earnings Per Share (Basic)

Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing 9.37 9.37
Earnings Per Share (Diluted)

Farnings Per Share (Basic) (Rs.) 10.91 (26.22)
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (Rs.) 10.91 (26.22)
Face Value Per Share(Rs.) 10 10|

NOTE 39 - FAIR VALUES

Reconciliation of fait value measurement of unquoted equity instruments classified as FVTOCI

assets:

Set out below, is a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial

instruments, along with the fair value measurement hierarchy:

(Rs in. Lakhs)
Financial Assets
Unquoted Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Level 3
Shares™
Biological Assets - - 218 4 Level 2

*Amount is below the rounding off norms adopled by the Comparny.




DURRUNG TEA ESTATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023

NOTE 40 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimize
any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, the Company has risk
management policies as described below-

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / faiture by the counterparly to
meet financial obligations as per the terms of contract. The Company is exposed to credit risk
for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, financial guarantees and derivative financial
instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risks,

Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode (e.g. auction,
consignment, private - both domestic and export) are made after judging credit worthiness of
the customers, advance payment or against letter of credit by banks. The history of defaults has
been minimal and outstanding receivables are regularly manitored. For credit risk on the loans
to parties including associates, the Company is not expecting any material risk on account of
non-performance by any of the parties.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s
treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each
counterparty, The limits are set to minimize the concentration of tisks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The carrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets.

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company fails to honor its financial obligations in
accordance with terms of contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market
positions.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (including the

undrawn credit facilitics extended by banks and financial institutions) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the Company’s liquidity

B
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management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets
necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external
regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

(Rs ii. Lakhs)
Contractual maturities of Less Between | Between More Total
financial liabilities as at 31=t| thanl land2 2and5 than 5
March, 2023 Year years years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,268.02 - 66.75 - | 1,334.77
(Principal plus interest)
Trade Payables 111.09 1345 10.98 1.45 136.98
Other financial liabilities 67.94 41.36 - - 109.31
Total non-derivative financial | 1,447.05 54.81 77.73 145 | 1,581.06
liabilities

(Rs in. Lakhs)

Contractual maturitics  of Less Between | Between More Total
financial liabilities as at 31s| thanl 1and2 2and 5 than 5
March, 2022 Year years years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,275.93 - 105.39 -| 138132
(Principal plus interest)
Trade Payables 73.63 14.41 3.56 0.71 9231
Other financial liabilities 48.98 52.90 - - 101.88
Total non-derivative financial | 1,470.15 105.39 - -| 1,575.54
liabilities
(C) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with

variable rates, which expose the Campany to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company's policy
is to maintain most of its borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to achieve this when

'y o
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necessary. During 31 March 2023 and 315t March 2022, the Company's borrowings at variable
rate were mainly denominated in INR.

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the
future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

(ii) Price risk

The Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - unquoted
and classified in the Balance Sheet either as fair value through OCT or at fair value through
profit or loss. The Company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in
securities.

The table below sets forth the fair value of unquoted investments in securities of listed
companies.

(Rs, in Lakhs)

0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
*Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.

(D) Agricultural Risk

Cultivation of tea being an agricultural activity, there are certain specific financial risks. These
financial risks arise mainly due to adverse weather conditions, logistic problems inherent to
remote areas, and fluctuation of selling price of finished goods (tea) due to increase in
supply/availability.

The Company manages the above financial risks in the following manner:

s  Sufficient inventory levels of agro chemicals, fertilizers and other inputs are maintained
so that timely corrective action can be taken in case of adverse weather conditions,

o Slightly higher level of consumable stores viz. packing materials, coal and HSD are
maintained in order to mitigate financial risk arising from logistics problems.

e Forward contracts are made with customers, in order to mitigate the financial risk in
fluctuation in selling price of tea.

s Sufficient working-capital-facility is obtained from banks in such a way that cultivation,
manufacture and sale of tea is not adversely affected even in times of adverse
conditions.

NOTE 40 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to:

1. Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and :
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2. Maintain an optimal capital structure to teduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of net debt to
equity ratio and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio of the Company.

Total debt implies total borrowings of the Company and Equity comprises all components
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The following table summarizes the Total Debt, Equity and Ratio thereof.

(Rs in. Lakhs)

- Non- Current 66.75 105.29

= Current 1,268.02 1,275.93
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 41.36 52.90
1,376.13 1,434.22
(i) Equity attributable to Shareholders 54.60 (47.61)
(iii) Debt to equity ratio 25.20 30.12

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company has complied with the financial
covenants as imposed by the bank.

No changes were made in the ubjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year
ended 31stMarch 2023 and 31t March 2022,

NOTE 41

The Company has entered into Operating lease agreements in letting out space. The lease
agreements are made for specific period. Lease payments received,/ recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss for the year ended 31% March 2023 amounted to Rs. 0.60 Lakhs (Previous Year- Nil).
Future receivables for operating lease are as follow:

Particulars As at 31% March 2023 |  As at 31 March 2022
Not later than 1 year 0.60 "
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 240 4
Later than five years 5.40 -
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Since the lease is an operating lease, the Company is duly accounting for the rental income in the
books as per the requirement of Ind AS 116 over the period of the lease term.

NOTE 43

Rs. 4.75/- Lakhs (Previous year- Nil) of trade payables and other payables is due to Micro, Small
and Medium enterprises (identified based on information made available during the year by such
enterprises to the Company). No interest in terms of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 has heen either paid or accrued during the year.

NOTE 44

Balances of Trade Receivables and Other Receivables, Advances, Trade Payables, Other Current
Liabilities include old carried over balances which are subject to confirmations, pending
reconciliaion and adjustments.

NOTE 45 - Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has not undertaken any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of
the Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956 during the current year

NOTE 46 - Number of Layers of Company

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Companies and accordingly the disclosure as to
whether the company has complied with the number of layers of companies prescribed under
clause(87) of the of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers)
Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

NOTE 47 - Utilization of Borrowing Funds

The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested funds in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, that the intermediary shall
lend to or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

The Company has not received any fund from any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or
indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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NOTE 48 - Details of Benami Property held

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of1988) and rules made
thereunder.

NOTE 49

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts except for the month of March, 23 wherein the production
details provided to the bank are as on 30% March, 2023,

NOTES50
None of the Banks, Financial Institutions or other lenders from whom the company has borrowed
funds has declared the company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the current year or in the

previous year.
NOTE 51 - Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

All the charges or satisfaction which is required to be registered with the Registrar of Companies
(ROC) have been duly registered within the statutory time limit provided under the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction thereof which is yet to be registered with
ROC beyond the statutory period, during the year ending 31st March, 2023 and also for the year
ending 31st March, 2022,

NOTE 52 - Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year
ending 31st March, 2023 and also for the year ending 31st March, 2022.

NOTE 53

The Company does not have any such unrecorded transaction in the books of account that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the fax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),
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NOTE 54
Previous year figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary.

Signature to Notes 1 ta 54 Fot and on behalf of Board
As per our Report annexed
For V.Singhi & Associates 6 S—
Chartered Accountants = st
Firm Regn. No.: 311017E g _ e J\-“‘TD:Q-’\_‘
Zo Avantika Jalan Mrityunjay Jalan
Director Managing Director
tlase Cafasn DIN: 03333925  DIN:07259366
(Naveen Taparia) '
Partner - e,
Membership No.: 058433 MNaugata Nakate W
Namrata Nahata D. Maheshwari
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer

Date: 30" May, 2023



